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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

Your directors are delighted to present to you the Thirty-First Annual Report of InCred Prime Finance
Limited (Formerly ‘InCred Financial Services Limited’) (“the Company”) together with the Audited

Statement of Accounts for the financial year(“FY”) ended on March 31, 2023.

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

The Company has undergone a Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement amongst
InCred Holdings Limited (erstwhile known as ‘KKR Capital Markets India Limited') (“IHL"), Bee Finance
Limited, InCred Financial Services Limited (erstwhile known as 'KKR India Financial Services Limited')
("IFSL”), InCred Prime Finance Limited (erstwhile known as 'InCred Financial Services Limited')
(“IPFL/erstwhile IFSL”) and their respective shareholders, hereinafter referred to as “Scheme”. The
Scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated May 6, 2022,

certified true copy of which was received by the Company on June 6, 2022.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on July 26, 2022, have made the Scheme
effective. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the identified business, branches, assets specific &
general liabilities, debts, accumulated tax loss and unabsorbed tax depreciation, obligations, permits,
contracts, employees, agreements, policies, arrangements, approvals, sanctions and proceedings etc.
of the InCred Demerged Undertaking as defined in the Scheme carried on by erstwhile IFSL have
vested in IFSL. Further, pursuant to the said Scheme becoming effective, the NCDs of the erstwhile
IFSL, have transferred to and vested in IFSL, and the obligations towards payment of interest or

repayment of the principal amounts will vest in the IFSL.

Further as per the Scheme, the remaining NBFC business as provided in the Scheme shall continue to
be carried out by IPFL. Pursuant to the Scheme, the name of the Company has changed to InCred
Prime Finance Limited.
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The summary of the Company’s financial performance for FY 2022-23 as compared to the previous FY

2021-22 is given below:

(X. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-22
Income from Operations 77.46 48,791.66
Other Income 134.04 3,330.04
Total Income 211.50 52,121.70
Expenses 194.36 46,233.52
Depreciation & Amortization 0.50 1,070.98
Total Expenses 194.86 47,304.50
Profit before exceptional items and tax 16.64 4,817.20
Exceptional Items - -
Profit after exceptional items and before tax 16.64 4,817.20
Tax Expense 15.13 1,205.43
Profit After Tax 1.51 3,611.77
Transfer to Special Reserve under Section 45-IC 0.30 722.35
of The RBI Act, 1934

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Your Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as a Non - Deposit Taking Non-Banking

Finance Company under Section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934 and continues to comply with the applicable

guidelines, circular, notification and directions issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as applicable to

a Systemically Important Non - Deposit Taking Non- Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC-ND-SI’).

Overview of the FY 2022-23:

e The Company’s revenue was % 77.46 lakhs and profit after tax was ¥ 1.51 lakhs during the year;

¢ Assets under management reduced to % 332.03 lakhs as against ¥ 382323.85 lakhs in the previous

year on account of demerger.

e Gross and Net NPAs were 78.99 % and 51.92 %
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IMPACT OF COVID -19 PANDEMIC

The detailed disclosure on the material impact of Covid—19 pandemic on the Company is forming part

of the Financial Statements of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has transferred % 0.49 lakhs (previous year % 722.35 lakhs) to Special Reserve created
under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

DIVIDEND

For the year ended on March 31, 2023, your Company has not considered payment of dividend.

INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY/MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report, for the year under review is presented as

Annexure A which forms part of this report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY DURING THE YEAR

There are no material changes or commitments which affect the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate, and the date
of this Report other than as explained above in the para — Composite Scheme of Arrangement.

RBI COMPLIANCE

The Company continues to comply with the RBI regulations as applicable to it.

The Company has also complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934 and other applicable rules/regulations/guidelines, issued from time to time.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (“CRAR”)

The company maintains a healthy CRAR of 87.98% which is much higher than the prescribed minimum
CRAR of 15% as per prudential norms. Following are the details of Tier | & Il Capital of the Company
as on March 31, 2023:

CRAR- Tier | Capital : 1047.32
CRAR- Tier Il Capital : 0.02

CHANGES TO SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors at their meeting held
on July 26, 2022, the face value of the paid-up share capital has been reduced from ¥ 10/- per share to

% 1/- per share.

Further, during the year under review, the Company received notice from the holders of Cumulative
Compulsorily Convertible Preference (“CCCPS”) Shareholders (“Preference Shareholders”) for
conversion of their CCCPS. Considering the request from the Preference Shareholders the Board at its
meeting held on March 27, 2023, approved and allotted 3,34,79,624 equity shares pursuant to

conversion of 3,34,79,624 cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (“CCCPS”).

The paid-up share capital of the Company is % 38,80,25,963 as at March 31, 2023.

FUND RAISING

Pursuant to scheme of corporate reorganization inter alia involving the demerger of the retail lending
portfolio of the Company into InCred Financial Services Limited (Formerly ‘KKR India Financial Services
Limited’) all facilities availed by the Company & Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company have

been transferred to the IFSL.

CREDIT RATING

During the period under review, the ratings assigned by CARE and CRISIL have been withdrawn for
the Company, due to the culmination of the scheme of corporate reorganization inter alia involving the
demerger of the retail lending portfolio of the Company into InCred Financial Services Limited (Formerly
‘KKR India Financial Services Limited’) and accordingly the ratings have been assigned to the securities
of IFSL.
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CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company continued to carry on its business as Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Finance Company
within the framework given by RBI for NBFCs.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES AND PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH SUBSIDIARY /
ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has no subsidiary/joint venture/ associate companies.

Pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective, the subsidiaries of the Company have become the

subsidiaries of the InCred Financial Services Limited.

DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board is in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act of the
Companies Act, 2013

As on the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 4 Directors comprising

of 2 Independent Directors and 2 Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

Following changes with respect to the Board took place during the year under review:

Pursuant to the effectiveness of the composite scheme of arrangement, since certain part of the
business of the Company demerged into the IFSL, the Board was reconstituted on July 26, 2022, as
follows:

Mr. Bhupinder Singh, Mr. Vivek Bansal, Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta and Ms. Rupa Vora continued to
act as Directors. However, Mr. Bhupinder Singh and Mr. Vivek Bansal who were acting as an Executive
Directors were redesignated as Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors.

Appointment and Cessation:

Mr. Vivek Anand PS who was appointed as the Nominee of Oaks Asset Management Limited ceased

to be a Director, with effect from July 27, 2022 pursuant to the scheme of arrangement.
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Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta, appointed as the Independent Director, ceased to be an Independent

Director with effect from March 30, 2023 due to his preoccupation with other assignments.

Mr. Karnam Sekar, who was appointed as the Independent Director, ceased to be an Independent
Director with effect from July 27, 2022. Mr. Sekar has been reappointed for his second term as the
Independent Director of the Company with effect from March 31, 2023, for a period of 5 years subject

to approval by the Shareholders.

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contribution and guidance provided
by Mr. Vivek Anand PS, and Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta during their association with the Company
towards establishing and building the Company.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are available on the website of the

Company viz. https://www.incredprime.com.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite

gualifications, experience and expertise and hold highest standards of integrity.

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the RBI Directions, none of the Directors on the Board of your Company are disqualified from

being appointed or to continue as Directors.

There were no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors, vis- a-vis the

Company during the financial year 2022-2023 therefore there are no disclosures to be provided herein.

DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Vivek Bansal, Director (DIN: 07835456) will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

and being eligible, has offered himself for reappointment.

Necessary details for re-appointment as required under the Act is given in the notice of ensuing Annual

General Meeting.

Declaration by Directors
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Each of the Director of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the “fit and proper” criteria as
prescribed under Chapter XI of RBI Master Direction No. DNBR. PD. 008/ 03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st
September 2016 (as amended from time to time) and that they are not disqualified from being

appointed/ continuing as Directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

The Board of Directors has confirmed that all existing Directors are fit and proper to continue to hold
the appointment as Directors on the Board, as reviewed and recommended by the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee on fit and proper criteria under RBI Master Directions.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, pursuant to the provisions
of Section 149(7) of the Act, stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act and they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be
reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgment and without any external influence.

FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA & CODE OF CONDUCT

All the Directors meet the fit and proper criteria stipulated by the RBI. All the Directors and Senior

Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As per Section 203 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder, the following employees were the

whole-time key managerial personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2023:

1. Mr. Sunil Harlalka, Manager
2. Ms. Nikita Vora, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
3. Mr. Shailesh Kumar, Chief Financial Officer

The Board at its meeting held on July 26, 2022, appointed Mr. Shailesh Kumar as the Chief Financial
Officer and Ms. Krishi Jain as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company in place

of Mr. Vivek Bansal and Mr. Gajendra Thakur respectively.

During the year under review, the Board at its meeting held on December 19, 2022, appointed Mr. Sunil

Harlalka as a Manager in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Further during the year under review, Ms. Krishi Jain ceased to be the Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from December 31, 2022, and Ms. Nikita Vora was

appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from January
01, 2023.

Subsequent to the year under review, Ms. Nikita Vora ceased to be the Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from April 28, 2023, and Mr. Bhavyesh Jain has been
appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from May 16,
2023.

Further subsequent to the year under review, the Board at its meeting held on May 16, 2023, accepted
the resignation of Mr. Shailesh Kumar as the Chief Financial Officer with effect from May 31, 2023, and
appointed Mr. Jay Lalwani as the Chief Financial Officer with effect from June 01, 2023.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review the Board met six times viz. on April 29, 2022, May 13, 2022, July 26,
2022, September 02, 2022, December 19, 2022, and March 27, 2023. The intervening gap between

the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

COMMITTEES CONSTITUTED BY THE BOARD

The Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate
governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant statutory and

regulatory provisions of applicable laws and statutes.

As on March 31, 2023, the Company had various Committees constituted pursuant to statutory /
regulatory requirements namely Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Asset Liability Management Committee, Risk Management

Committee, Finance Committee and IT Strategy Committee.

The details of formation, constitution, terms of reference, meetings held and attendance of the Members

have been disclosed in the Financial Statements of the Company.
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COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS,
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

Section 178 of the Act requires the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") to formulate a
policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Senior Management/KMPs and other employees of

the Company and recommend the same for approval of the Board.

Further, Section 134 of the Act stipulates that the Board’s Report is required to include a statement on
Company’s Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
gualifications, positive attributes, independence of director and remuneration for KMPs and other

employees.

The Board of Directors have, based on the recommendation of the NRC, approved the policy on
Directors’ appointment and remuneration for Directors, KMP and other employees, which is available

on the website of the Company at https://www.incredprime.com/policies.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board acknowledges its intention to establish and follow “best practices” in Board governance to
fulfil its fiduciary obligation to the Company. The Board is committed to assessing its own performance

as a Board to identify its strengths and areas in which it may improve its functioning.

The Company has laid down an Evaluation Policy for Board Evaluation, setting the criteria based on
which the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the
individual directors as well as the evaluation of its various Committees. The evaluation was conducted
based on a structured questionnaire which comprises performance criteria such as performance of
duties and obligations, independence of judgement, level of engagement and participation, their
contribution in enhancing the Board’s overall effectiveness, etc. The Board has expressed their

satisfaction with the evaluation process.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors, based on the representations received from the operational management, confirm in

pursuance to provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, that:
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i inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

i the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

iii the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

vi the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws including Secretarial Standards and that such systems were adequate and

operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Shinde Nayak & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN 119906W), were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members of the Company in the 30" AGM of the Company
to hold the office of the Statutory Auditors for a period of three consecutive years from the conclusion
of the 30" AGM till the conclusion of 33" AGM.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report to the Members during the year under review is unmodified/clean. The Notes to
the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further clarifications under Section 134(3)(f) of the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. Ashish Karodia

& Co. to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.

The Secretarial Audit Report is appended as Annexure B to this Report. There is no adverse remark,

gualification, reservation, or disclaimer in the Secretarial Audit Report.
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REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

There were no frauds reported by the Auditors of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Act to the
Audit Committee (“AC”).

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is in the financial services industry. In view of the nature of activities which are being
carried on by the Company, the maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act is not applicable on the Company and hence such

accounts and records are not maintained.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has in place a well-defined and robust internal audit plan, as agreed by the Audit
Committee is aligned in a way that provides an independent view to the Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee and the Senior Management on the quality and efficacy of the internal controls, governance
systems and processes in place. As per the agreed scope of audit, the appointed Internal Auditors
periodically carry out audit on a test basis and report their observations and recommendations to the

Audit Committee for corrective and preventive actions.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious
observation has been received from the Statutory Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or
inadequacy of such controls. M/s. Shinde Nayak & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, have

issued unqualified report on Internal Financial Controls.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations obtained
by us and based on the report(s) of Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year under
review, the Directors are of the view that the internal financial controls with reference to the financial

statements of the Company were adequate and operating efficiently.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Board of Directors affirms that the remuneration paid to the employees of the Company is as per
the Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration for Directors, KMPs and other employees and
is in accordance with the requirements of the Act and none of the employees are related to any Directors

of the Company.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Composite Scheme, as part of the demerger, the permanent and contract employees,
staff, and workmen of the Company engaged in the Retail NBFC Business (as defined in the
Transaction Scheme) became employees of the IFSL. Accordingly, pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme, IHL has adopted the ESOP Plan & Scheme under which the employees of the Company which

have been transferred to IFSL have received employee stock options of IHL.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has in place a policy for prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual harassment at

workplace.

Further, the Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder

that looks into the complaints of aggrieved women employees, if any, and is instrumental in:

e promoting gender equality and justice and the universally recognized human right to work with
dignity

e prevention of sexual harassment of women at the workplace.
During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints in this regard.
VIGIL MECHANISM
Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
established vigil mechanism for directors, employees, and other external stakeholders to report genuine

concerns. Vigil Mechanism forms part of Whistle Blower Policy, which has been approved by the Board

of Directors and is displayed on the web site of the Company at https://www.incredprime.com/policies.
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The Vigil Mechanism Framework empowers all levels of employees including top management to raise
voice against actual/ suspected violations. The framework ensures protection to the whistle-blower to
avoid any sort of unfair or prejudicial employment practices. The Chairperson of the Audit Committee
has direct access to all complaints raised through the framework. At the Audit Committee, brief update
is presented to the Members for their review. The Committee takes necessary actions to maintain
confidentiality within the organization on matters brought to its attention. There were no whistle blower

complaints received during the year.

The mechanism framed by the Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Act.

DEPOSITS

Your Company being an NBFC, disclosure requirements under Chapter V of the Act read with Rule

8(5)(v) and 8(5)(vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Company has
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee. The composition and terms of

reference of the CSR Committee is provided in as an annexure to Financial Statements.

The Company has also formulated a policy with respect to its activities under CSR (“CSR Policy”) in
accordance with the requirements of the Act and containing details specified therein which is available

on the website of the Company at https://www.incredprime.com/policies.

The Company’s CSR policy is committed towards CSR activities as envisaged in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013. In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 as amended (“CSR Rules”) and in accordance with CSR
Policy. Your Board of Directors are happy to inform that during the year, the Company has spent 2
43.43 lakhs towards CSR projects/ programs against a budget of ¥ 44.7 lakhs. The remainder of ¥ 1.27
lakhs, parked separately for handling exigencies, is donated to PM Cares Fund, an eligible fund

specified under Schedule VII in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013

An annual report on activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)

Rules, 2014 has been appended as Annexure C to this Report.
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ANNUAL RETURN AS PRESCRIBED UNDER THE ACT AND RULES MADE THEREUNDER

The Annual Return in Form MGT-7 as required under Section 92(3) of the Act shall be hosted on the

website of the Company viz https://www.incredprime.com/investor-relation.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided, if any, are covered

under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act and forms part of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Board of Directors has approved the policy on transactions with related parties (“RPT Policy”),
pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee. In line with the requirements of the Act, RBI
Regulations, the Company has formulated the RPT Policy which is also available on the website of the
Company at https://www.incredprime.com/policies. The Policy on Related party Transactions intends
to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions

between the Company and the related parties.

During the year under review, the contracts and arrangements with the related party have been entered
by the Company in its ordinary course of business and at arm’s length and there were no materially
significant related party transactions. Given that the Company does not have anything to report pursuant
to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form
No. AOC- 2, the same is not provided.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF
THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There are no material changes or commitments which affect the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate, and the date

of this Report other than as explained above in the para — Composite Scheme of Arrangement.
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS

AND TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the

going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Considering that the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company, the particulars regarding
conservation of energy and technology absorption as required to be disclosed pursuant to Section
134(3) (m) of the 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 not relevant to its

activities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under consideration, there was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Expenditures.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) in terms of the requirements of
Master Circular — “Non-Banking Financial Companies — Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2015”.

The Company have a risk management framework and Board members are informed about risk
assessment and minimization procedures and periodical review to ensure management controls risk by

means of a properly designed framework.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy covering identification, assessment,
measurement, mitigation and monitoring of all the key risks faced by the Company. This policy has
been approved by the Board and is subjected to its review at an annual frequency at the minimum. The
Risk Management Committee assists the Board in providing oversight on the implementation of risk

management framework laid down in the policy.

The Company, as it advances towards its business objectives and goals, is often subjected to various

risks. Details of the same are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE MANAGEMENT ACT COMPLIANCE

The Board hereby confirms that the Company has complied with all the provisions and requirements
under Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 including applicable Master Directions issued by the

Reserve Bank of India.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

In terms of provisions of Section 118 of the Act, your Company is in compliance with Secretarial
Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

CHANGE IN CONTROL

Subsequent to the year under review, in accordance with the requirement specified in the “Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016” issued by the RBI vide Master Direction
DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 01 September 2016 (‘the RBI Directions’), the Company is
in the process of seeking prior approval of Reserve Bank of India for the change in the entire
shareholding of the Company by way of acquisition of its equity shares by M/s. InCred Capital Financial
Services Private Limited (" InCred Capital”)

Mr. Bhupinder Singh is the ultimate beneficial owner and promoter of the Company and InCred Capital
and hence, pursuant to the proposed acquisition of shares by InCred Capital there
would no change in promoter of both the companies.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

During the year under review, the Company has not obtained any registration/ license / authorisation,

by whatever name called from any other financial sector regulators.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors express their sincere gratitude to RBI, Securities and Exchange Board of India, National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, BSE Limited, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
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For InCred Prime Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal
Director Director
DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07835456

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2023



Annexure A
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

InCred Prime Finance Limited (‘InCred Prime’ or ‘the Company’) is a non-deposit taking Non-banking
Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) engaged in the business
of lending.

Macroeconomic Overview:

The last couple of years have been challenging for the Indian economy. While Indian GDP contracted
by 6.6% in FY20, FY21 and FY22 witnessed revival with GDP growth of 8.7% and 7.0%, although on a
low base. On the global economic front, inflation has emerged as a key challenge owing to factors such
as rise in energy prices, disruption in global supply chains and rising freight costs. The escalating
tension among countries in the backdrop of the war between Russia and Ukraine has also contributed
to surge in commodity prices globally. To curb inflation, central banks across the world have adopted
guantitative tightening i.e. raising interest rates to curb liquidity. Albeit the recent pause in repo rate,
RBI also followed suit and hiked rates by an aggregate of 250 bps starting from April 2022.

While the global environment remains challenging, the Indian economy continues to show resilience
and remains one of the fastest growing large economies in the world. With structural reforms and
initiatives such as production-linked incentive scheme, robust GDP growth is expected in FY24. The
RBI has forecasted India’s GDP growth rate for FY24 to 6.5% during its Apr'23 Monetary Policy meeting.
This looks particularly impressive considering the global economy is slowing down and many
economists are forecasting recession.

Industry Overview:

Financial Services, which forms the backbone of the Indian economy, is primarily made up of
commercial banks, insurance companies, NBFCs, cooperatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other
smaller financial institutions. NBFCs play a pivotal role in financial intermediation and promoting
inclusive growth by providing credit access to a large chunk of under-banked customers. Faster TAT,
superior service standards and customer orientation typically differentiate NBFCs from commercial
banks. As of February 28, 2023, there were 9,471 registered NBFCs in India.

In the past few years, the NBFC sector has faced various headwinds such as IL&FS crisis, COVID
pandemic etc. which posed various systemic challenges such as liquidity stress, rating downgrades,
and higher borrowing costs. Nonetheless, these events have also acted as a ‘quality separator’ between
well managed NBFCs and the average ones. NBFCs with strong risk and collections management
competencies, which are well capitalized, focused on technology and have talented leadership have
emerged as clear winners. We believe going forward these NBFCs will assume more systemic
importance due to their strong linkage with the banking sector, capital market and other financial sector
entities. Overall, NBFCs are poised to play a significant complementary role in financial intermediation,
along with banks in India and are poised to bridge the credit gap in the large underserved Indian market.

The Company:

The Company has undergone a Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement amongst
InCred Holdings Limited (erstwhile known as ‘KKR Capital Markets India Limited') (“IHL"), Bee Finance
Limited, InCred Financial Services Limited (erstwhile known as 'KKR India Financial Services Limited’)
("IFSL”), InCred Prime Finance Limited (erstwhile known as 'InCred Financial Services Limited')
(“IPFL/erstwhile IFSL”) and their respective shareholders, hereinafter referred to as “Scheme”. The
Scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated May 6, 2022,
certified true copy of which was received by the Company on June 6, 2022.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on July 26, 2022, have made the Scheme
effective. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the identified business, branches, assets specific &
general liabilities, debts, accumulated tax loss and unabsorbed tax depreciation, obligations, permits,
contracts, employees, agreements, policies, arrangements, approvals, sanctions and proceedings etc.



of the InCred Demerged Undertaking as defined in the Scheme carried on by erstwhile IFSL have
vested in IFSL. IPFL has 4 employees at the end of the year. The Company continued to focus on
retaining high quality talent across the organization and ensured lot more employee engagement
initiatives to keep a fine balance between work demands and workplace fun for employees.

Further, pursuant to the said Scheme becoming effective, the NCDs of the erstwhile IFSL, have
transferred to and vested in IFSL, and the obligations towards payment of interest or repayment of the
principal amounts will vest in the IFSL.

Further as per the Scheme, the remaining NBFC business as provided in the Scheme shall continue to
be carried out by IPFL. Pursuant to the Scheme, the name of the Company has changed to InCred
Prime Finance Limited.

Business Update:

As on March 31, 2023, unsecured loan book worth Rs. 1.5 crore is outstanding under the company and
the rest of the loan book has been transferred to IFSL.

Performance highlights of the Company:

Loans and Advances - Rs. 1.5 Crs
Net Interest Income — Rs. 0.57 Crs
Profit before Tax — Rs. 0.17 Crs
Profit after Tax — Rs. 0.02 Crs

ANANENEN

Internal control systems and their adequacy:

Internal Audit function lead by Head, Internal Audit reports functionally to Audit Committee. The function
is governed by Internal Audit Policy and Charter which clearly defines roles and responsibility and
independence of Internal Auditors, Management responsibility. Risk based IA plan is prepared on an
annual basis and the same is discussed and approved by Audit Committee. IA function is adequately
skilled to deliver on IA plan. Internal Audit findings / reports are discussed with process owners and
agreed action plan is tracked for implementation. Significant observations and action plan status is
updated to Audit Committee.

Opportunities & Threats
Risk Management of the outstanding loan book is essential to manage risks associated with credit
quality, market volatility and economic uncertainty.

Outlook

The management is contemplating business strategies for future roadmap in accordance with the
discussions with stakeholders.

Risks & Concerns:

In view of the growing volatility in the operating environment impacting global businesses on an
unprecedented scale, we are adopting a more proactive risk management and mitigation framework
which is based on assessment of risks through proper analysis and understanding of the underlying
risks before undertaking any transactions and changing or implementing processes and systems. The
key risks are the following:

e Liquidity Risk
The Company has in place Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO), consisting of Directors
and senior officials. They review the policies, systems, controls, and positions of the financing
business and oversee the implementation and ensure adherence to the risk tolerance/limits and
liquidity buffer.

o Credit Risk
The Company has a stringent Credit Appraisal System and monitoring processes for identification,
assessment, and mitigation of Credit Risk.



¢ Regulatory Risk
We fully comply with all the periodic guidelines issued by the RBI and other regulators and adhere
strictly to all the regulatory requirements.

e ITrisk

we have put in processes, systems and tools for ensuring vigilant monitoring, audit logging and
suspicious activity reporting.

For InCred Prime Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal
Director Director
DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07835456

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2023
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ME-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REFORT
FOR THE FINANWCIAL YEAR ENDED2023

[Fursuant to secton 204(1) of the Comparoes fet, 2013 and mle Ho® of the Companes
(& ppointnent and Fernureration Personnel) Fules, 201 4]

To,

Thellermbers,

INCEED FRIWE FINMANCE LIMITED

{Previously known as InCred Finaneial Services Liraited)

7400 NHIPAIFLC 34031 2

Urat Mo, 1203, 12th floor, B Wing The Capital Flot Mo, C-70, G Block,
BEC, Ihumbai-400051 hiaharashira, India

We hawe conducted the sscretanal audit of the compliance of applicable statotory provasions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by InCred Prnme Fmance Limated (Prewiously known as
InCred Fmancial Sermaces Limited), having CIN: 7499 WHIPPIPLCZ40312 (heremafter called
“the Company®). Secretanal Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evalnating the corporate conductsistatatory compliances and ex pressing our Opimion thereon.

Based on owr werfication of the InCred Pnme Fmance Lumited (Presnously known as InCred
Financial Services Lirnited) books, papers, minute books, forms and retmms filed and other records
maintamed by the company and also the mdormation provided by the Company, its officers, agents
andauthonzed representatrves dunng the conduct of secretanal andit We hereby report that m
myiour opimon, the company has, dunng the audit penod covermg the financial sear ended on
Diarch 31, 2023 complied wath the statubory provasions listed hereunder and also that the
Cormpanvhas proper Board-processes and compliance-mechamsm in place to the extent in the
mannet and subject to the reporing made herematier:

We have exarnined the books, papers, manute books, formns and retwms filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the

provisions of:

(1) The Comparies &ct, 20135 (the Act) and the riles made there under,

(1) The Secunthes Contracts (Regulation) et 1956 (*5CEA™) and the miles made there under;

» Appiicable upto July 20 2023 e the effective date of NCILT Schere approving Composite dcheme of
Amaleammation and Ay anperent on Moy 06 2022

i) The Depositones Set, 1996 and the Fegulations and Bye-laws Framed the re under;
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(1v)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines preseribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’):-

L.

Vs

Vi,

Vil

VIIL

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

» Applicable upto July 26, 2022 e the effective date of NCLT Scheme approving Compasite Scheme of
Amalgamation and Arrangement on May 06, 2022,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992.

* Applicable upto July 26, 2022 Le. the effective date of NCLT Scheme approving Composite Scheme of
Amalgamation and Arrangement on May 06, 2022,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009,

= Not applicable to the Company during the period under scrutiny

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Emplovee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines. 1999,

= Not applicable to the Company during the period under scrutiny

The Securtties and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debl Securities) Regulations,
2008

* Applicable upto Julv 26, 2022 ie. the effective date of NCLT Scheme approving Compasite Scheme of

Amalgamation and Arrangement on Mav 06, 2022,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations. 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,2009:and
* Not applicable to the Company during the period under scrutiny

The Securtties and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations. 1998
*Not applicable ta the Company during the period under scrutiny.

L]
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We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for system and
techarisro framed by the Company for the compliances under the following applicable fct (if
apphcable ), Law & Fegulations to the Cormpany:
a. Heserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its cireulars, hiaster Circulars, notfications and its
Dnrections as prescnbed for WBFCs, as informed icordinmed to us.
b, Applicable Dhirect and Indirect Tax Laws.
c. Sexual Harassrnent of Women at Workplace (Preventorn, Prohibinon and Redressal) Act
2015,

We hawve also exaruaned compliance with the applicable clauses of the following
1. Secretanal standards wsed by The Institote of Cormpany Secretanes of Indha.

. The Listng Agwements mgulatow emered nto by the Comparyr with BSE Limited and HESE
Limuted ;
* Avplicabie aplo July 26 J002 1e the gffechive date of NCLT Achere approving Conposite
Soheme of Amalearation and Arvangerwent o Mapr 0 2022

Durng the penod under resaew the Company has compled with the proswaswions of the Lct,
Fales Fegulations Guideline s Standardsete. mentoned abiore,

We further report that; -

The Board of Duectors of the Company 1s duly constituted as per the relevant applicable regulations.
The changes 1n the composton of the Board of Directors that took place dunng the penod under
review were carmed outin compliance with the provisions of the Let,

Ldeguate notee 15 grven to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
onagenda were sent generally for seeking and obtaiming further mformation and clanfications on the
agenda ttems before the meeting and formeaningtul parbicipation at the meeting

Iilajonty decimon 15 camed through whale the dissenting members” views, 1f any, are captured and
recorded as part of the minntes.

We furiher report that there are adequate systerns and processes m the commpany comine nsurate
with the sze and operations of the company to mortor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
miles, regulations and gmdelmes.

We fiurther veport that Jue 1o the repefitive natve oF the traxms aefions like issuance of the debentures, we have
veryfied the documents on sanple basis during the audit process.
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We further report that:

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Mumbai Bench, vide its order dated May
6, 2022 approved the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement amongst InCred
Holdings Limited (formerly ‘KKR Capital Markets India Limited'), Bee Finance Limited, InCred
Financial Services Limited (formerly 'KKR India Financial Services Limited"), InCred Prime
Finance Limited (formerly TnCred Financial Services Limited")("the Company”) and their respective
shareholders which got effective on July 26, 2022, This scheme involved the demerger of the
Company’s non-banking financing business mto KKR India Financial Services Limited.
(“Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement”)

Pursuant to the NCLT's approval to the above scheme of amalgamation vide order dated May 6, 2022,
there were several changes made to the Company's operations which includes but not limited to
following;:

Change 1n composition of the Board of Directors of the Company.

2. Adoption of new set of constitutional documents i.e. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company.

3. Change in name of the Company from InCred Financial Services Limited to InCred Prime Finance
Limited.

The Company complied with the order of NCLLT mn proper and fit manner.

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms and integral part of this report.

T

5\

L

2
CS Ashish Karodia
M No. 6549 CP 6375
On 16.05.2023
AtIndore
UDIN:F006549E000319191




To,

Annexure —A to the Secretarial Audit Report

The Members,

INCRED PRIME FINANCE LIMITED

(Previously known as InCred Financial Services Limited)
U74899MH1991PLC340312

Unit No. 1203, 12th floor, B Wing, The Capital, Plot No. C-70, G Block,
BKC, Mumbai-400051 Maharashtra, India

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date 1s to be read along with this letter.

I

\
\\

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on my audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my
opmion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial
auditor, Cost auditor and other designated professionals.

Wherever required, T have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards 1s the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial audit report 1s neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

1

!

.\

- L
-

CS Ashish Karodia

MNo. 6549 CP 6375

On 16.05.2023

At Indore
UDIN:F006549E000319191
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ANNEXURE ‘C’'TO BOARD’S REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]
1. The Company’s CSR mission is to contribute to the social and economic development of the community through a series of interventions. The
company’s strategy is to integrate its activities in community development, social responsibility and environmental responsibility and encourage

each business unit or function to include these considerations into its operations. The Company, for Corporate Social Responsibility activities,
strives to promote education and ensure environmental sustainability/ ecological balance etc.

The CSR Policy adopted by your Company is available on the website of the Company at https://www.incredprime.com

2. The CSR committee of the Board of Directors as on the date of this Board Report comprises of the following:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation Number of CSR meeting | Number of CSR meeting
held/entitled to attend attended during the year
during the year

1. Mr. Debashish Dutta Independent Director 0 0
Gupta*

2. Mr. Vivek Bansal Non-Executive Director 1 1

3. Mrs. Rupa Vora Independent Director 1 1

4. Mr. Karnam Sekar** Independent Director 1 1

* appointed w.e.f July 26, 2022 and ceased to be a member w.e.f. March 30, 2023
**ceased to be member w.e.f. July 27, 2022 and appointed as a member w.e.f. March 31, 2023

3. The Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board of our Company is available on the website of the
Company at https://www. incredprime.com.

4. Impact assessments of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014: Not Applicable


https://www.incredprime.com/
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5. Amount available for set off in pursuance of sub -rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and the
amount required for set off for the financial year:

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set off from Amount required to be set-off for
preceding financial years the financial year, if any
(in INR) (in INR)
1. 2021-22 NIL NIL
2. 2020-21 NIL NIL
3. 2019-20 NIL NIL
Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 2221.22 Lakhs

7. CSR obligation

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (INR in Lakhs)
a. Two percent of average net profits of the company as per section 135(5) 44.70
b. Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activity of the previous NIL
financial years
C. Amount required to be set off for the financial year NIL
d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b- 7¢) 44.70

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent for Amount spent (In INR.)
the Financial Year: Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR | Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII
(In INR.) Account as per section 136 as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount (in INR) Date of Transfer Name of the fund Amount (in INR) Date of Transfer
44,70,000 PM Cares Fund 1, 26, 800 16 May, 2023




(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

INCRED PRIME FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly “INCRED FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED")

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-2023

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Sr. No. | Name of the | Items from the Local Area Location of Projec | Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation-
project list of activities in | (Yes/No) the Project t allocated spent in the | transferred Implement | Through Implementing Agency
Schedule VIl of durati for the current to unspent ation
the act. State District on project (in financial CSR Direct Name CSR
INR) year (in account for (Yes/No) Registration No.
INR) the project
as per
section
135(6) (in
INR)
1 Nanhi Kali Promoting Yes Maharashtra/ | Palghar / - - 43,43,200 NIL Yes K.C. Mahindra | CSR00000511
Education Madhya Ratlam / Education
Pradesh / Varanasi Trust and
Uttar Nandi
Pradesh Foundation
Total 43,43,200
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr. No. Name of the Items from the list Local Area Location of the Amount spent Mode of Mode of Implementation
Project of activities in (Yes/No) project for the project (in | Implementati through Implementing
schedule VIl of the INR) on on Direct Agency
act State District (Yes/No) Name CSR
Registration
number
1.

(d) Amount spent in administrative overheads: NA




(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b + 8c + 8d + 8e): INR 44,70,000/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the proceeding three financial years:

INCRED PRIME FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly “INCRED FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED")

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-2023

Amount transferred to any fund specified
Sr. | Preceding Amount transferred to unspent Amount spent in the under schedule VIl as per section 135 (6), | Amount remaining to be spent
No | Financial CSR account under section reporting financial year if any. in succeeding financial years
year 135(6) (in INR) (in INR) Name of the Amount (in Date of (in INR.)
fund INR) transfer
1. | 2021-22 NIL NIL - NIL - NIL
2. | 2020-21 NIL NIL - NIL - NIL
3. | 2019-20 NIL NIL - NIL - NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of preceding financial year(s): na

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year.
(asset —wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset (s]: NA
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NA
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc: NA
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset):NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profits as per section 135(5): NA

For InCred Prime Finance Limited

Sd/-
Rupa Vora
Independent Director
DIN: 01831916

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of INCRED PRIME FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of INCRED PRIME FINANCE
LIMITED ('the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘financial
Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ('Ind AS') and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its
profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(the ‘SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are
further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statentents section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provision of this Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements,

Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
other information, The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. |

3, Venu Apartment, Kesar Baug Gompound, Qpp. Shinde Wadi, Off Dr. Ambladk i Rea 1, DadariE), Mumbai
Tel No. : 2410 5352, 2413 4364 « Fax No, ¢
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
InCred Prime Finance Limited

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our auditor
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ( “the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the
act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assels of the company and for preventing and
detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: o
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1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasrunabl_v be expected to ?uhveigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor (S. R. Batliboi & Associates
LLP) who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements as on April 29, 2022

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A",
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other comprehensive income,
Statement of changes in equity & the statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financials comply with the Ind AS referred to in section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of sub section (2) of section 164
of the Companies Act, 2013.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report

in “Annexure B".

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Independent Auditor’s report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position. \ :
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iii.

v,

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule
11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

For Shinde Nayak & Associates '
Chartered Accountants

Partner

‘irm Registration No. 119906W

L. V. Nayak)

Membership No. 104221

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2023
UDIN: 23104221 BGWAOH3394
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date on the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) Based on our audit procedures performed and according to information and
explanations given by management, we report that there is no intangible asset as on balance
sheet date, Hence reporting under clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(b) Property, Plant & Equipment were physically verified by management at reasonable
intervals and according to the explanations and information provided to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our audit procedures performed and according to information and explanations
given by the management, we report that the there are no immovable properties as on the
balance sheet date. Hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1998 and rules
made thereunder.

(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(b) Based on the information and explanation provided to us, during any point of time of the
year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. As
such, the quarterly returns or statements were not required to be filed by the Company with
such banks or financial institutions.

(a) The principal business of the company is to give loans and is a registered non-banking
financial company (‘'NBFC’) and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the company.
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(b) During the year the investments and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other
parties are not prejudicial to the company’s interest. The company has not provided any
guarantees or given any securities during the year.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the company as part of its
business for providing loans to individuals and corporates, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the company and the repayments
/ receipts of principal and interest are regular except for certain instances as below:

Qutstanding of overdue loans as on March 31, 2023:

Days past due Total Amount (Rs. in No. of case(s)
lakhs)

01 - 30 days 204 1]

31 - 60 days B . =

61 - 90 days - w7

Above 90 days 7 262.28 57

Total 264.32 58

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the total amount overdue for ninety
days or more in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans given in the course of
business operations of the Company aggregated to Rs, 262,28 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 in
respect of 57 number of loans. Further in such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps
have been taken by the company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and
interest.

(¢) The principal business of the company is to give loans and is a registered NBFC and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to the company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of

section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement

to report on clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, he requirement to report
on clause 3(V) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, clause 3(vi) of the order for maintenance of the cost records under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
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(b) During the year the investments and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partmership or any
other parties are not prejudicial to the company’s interest. The company has not provided

any guarantees or given any securities during the year,

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the company as part of

its business for providing loans to individuals and corporates, the schedule of repayment

of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the company and the
repayments / receipts of principal and interest are regular except for cerfain instances as

below:

Outstanding of overdue loans as on March 31, 2023:

Days past due Total Amount (Rs. in lakhs) | No. of case(s)

01 - 30 days 2.04 1
31 - 60 days : )
61 - 90 days : .
Above 90 days 262,28 57
Total : 264,32 58

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the total amount overdue for
ninety days or more in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans given in the
course of business operations of the Company aggregated to Rs, 262,28 lakhs as at March
31, 2023 in respect of 57 number of loans. Further in such instances, in our opinion,
reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the overdue amount of

principal and interest.

(e) The principal business of the company is to give loans and is a registered NBFC and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to

the company.

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to the company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement fo report on clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, he requirement to report
on clause 3(V) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, clause 3(vi) of the order for maintenance of the cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company. ;
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(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, income-
tax, goods and services tax, duty of custom, duty of excise value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to the company have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income-
tax, goods and service tax, dﬁt}’ of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to the company were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax , service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and
services tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{viii) of the order is not applicable
to the company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, there were no term loans availed
by the company during the year and accordingly reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is
not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company.

(€) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

() The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix) (f) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(a) Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanations given fo us,
the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable. f
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(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(a) Based on the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the
date of this report

(¢) Based on audit procedures and as per explanations provided to us, there are no instances
of whistle blower complaints during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with any of its directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not
applicable.

(a) The Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank Of India
Act, 1934 and the registration has been obtained.

(b) The company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank Of India Act, 1934

(c) The company is not a core investment company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirements to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order
is not applicable to the company. '
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(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and as per the explanations provided to us, the company has not incurred cash
losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year.

The previous statutory auditors (S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP) of the Company have
resigned during the year and there were no issues, objections or concerns raised by the
outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, in accordance with
the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of
the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 38 to the standalone financial statements.

For Shinde Nayak & Associates
Chartered Accountants '
Firm Registration No. 119906W

CANL.
Partner

Membership No. 104221
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2023

UDIN: 23104221BGWAOH 3394

ayak
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INCRED PRIME
FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and lesting and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that,

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Shinde Nayak & Associates
Chartered Accountants
jrm Rejgistration No, 119906W

artner
Membership No. 104221

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2023
UDIN: 23104221 BGWAOH3394
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
(farmerly known as inCred Finoncial Services Limited)

Standalone Financial Statements
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

[Rs. in lakhs}
I’:arlil:ulnrs i Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 16.64 4,817.20
Adjustments ro reconcile net profit to net cash generated from f {used in) operating activities
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 0.76 656.50
Loss on sale of proparty, plant and equipmant 3.40
Het (gain) en fair value changes - (38.29)
Interest income 175.00) (47,334.45)
Firance costs 15.00 21,568 06
Impairment on finarcial instruments 29.00 4,356.83
Share based payment to emplaoyees 244216
Retirement Benefit expenses - 60.52
Operating prafit before working capital changes {10.60] {13,527.67)
Working capital adjustments
{Increase) in Loans 850,00 {1,22,227.31)
(Increase] in other financial assets (189.00) [915.42)
Decrease / (Increase) in other non financial assets 16.00 500
Increase in ether financial labilities 386.00 1,840.23
Increase In other non financial lizbilities {221.00) 38428
{Decrease] f Increase in provisions - [1.58)
Cash generated from operations 941,38 {1,34,442.47)
Interest received on loans 75.00 45,796.66
Interest paid on barrowings and debt {18.00) 121,568.06)
Income taxes paid (net) 6.00) (1,822.50)
MNet cash [used in) operating activities 992,39 [1,12,086.37)
Cash llow fram investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipmant = {527.29)
Proceeds from sa'e of property, plant and equipment - 3777
Purchase of intangibles assets - {107.08)
Capital work-in-progress - [279.45)
Investment in subsidiaries [999.34)
Purchase of investments {61,273.28)
Proceeds from sale of investments £6,947.44
Investment in term deposits earmarked with banks - (5743030
Progeeds from maturity of term deposits earmarked with banks - 5502740
Net cash [used in] f generated from investing activities = 1,365 .87
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of equity shares (including securities premium] 15.89 67164
Reversal of rent expanse (441.55)
Proceeds fram borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,55,520.00
Proceads from issue of debt securities . 93,524.29
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) (1,000.00) {74,624,56)
Redamption of debt securities - (60,827.55)
MNet cash generated from financing activities |924.11) 1,13,822.27
Mutincrease f [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 827 3,131.77
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginnirg of the year® = {B45.69)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8.27 2,486.08

*As on Apr 01, 2022 Cosk & Cosh equivalent amounting to Rs 2,486.08 lakhs is tronsferced to IFSL ["Erstwhlle
KIES") on account of business combinotion

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation
Tre accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone firancial statements

Notes:

|2) The above Cash Flow Statement has baen prepared under the 'Indiract Methad® a5 set aut in the Indisn Accoun? g Stardard [Ind A5-7) - Staternent of Cash Flaw




[b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of

(Rs. in lakhs)
Parthoulars M :55::2023 :s“
[} March 31, 2021

Cash on hand iA = i
Balances with banks

=Current Accounis 827 £953.13
Deposit with bark with maturity less than 3 months . 15000
Cash ard cash equivalents (Refer note 2} 8.27 5,203.13
Less: Bark owardraft and cash credit (Refer nate 13) . {2,717.05)
Cash and cash equivalents in cash Tlow statemant 8.27 1,426,08

Sgnificant atcounting palicies and ey accounting estimates and judgments
The accompanying notes form anintegral part of the standalone finangial statements

As per our report of even date

For Shinde Mayak and Associates
itered Accountants

ICRI Firm Registration No,: 1195036W

VY |

. Nayak
Flriner
" Membership No; 104221

Flace: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2023

For and an behalf of the Bozrd of Directors af
InCred Prime Finance Limited
Cil: UF4859M HL991PLC 340312

(v

Bhupinder Singh

Direstar

DN 07342518
A

P Vi
AT

Shailesh Kumar
Chief Fingroial Officer

IR

) —f

L]
ek Bansal

Director
DUN; Q7835456

Bhawyesh Jain
Company Secrelary
Memberihip No; A30093

Piace; Mumrbai
Date: May 16, 2023
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

(1) Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information

A,

Corporate Information

InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited) (“Company”) was
incorporated in India on 8 January 1991, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,

The Company received a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'), on 30th
August 2000 to commence/carry on the business of Men-Banking Financial Institution |'NBFC')
without accepting public deposits. The Company currently holds a Certificate of Registration from
RBI bearing number B-12.02385 The Company qualifies to be a NBFC - Systematically Important Non-
Depasit taking Company as per Master - Direction - Non-Banking Finzncial Company - Systematically
Impaortant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions
2016, as amended (the "Master Directions”),

The registered office of the Company is Unit Mo. 1203, 12th floor, B Wing, The Capital, Plot No. C -
70, G Block, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051

The standalone financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
May 16, 2023.

Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from
time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other
relevant provisions of the Act, the RBI Master Directions and notification for Implementation of
Indian  Accounting Standard wvide circular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR{NBFC).CC.PD.No.109
/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 (‘RBI Notification for Implementation of Ind AS’) issued
by RBI. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except as explained in Note D15,

Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees [‘INR’), which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All the amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs,
unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention
except for the following items:

a. Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

b, Net defined benefit asset / liability — plan assets are measured at fair value less present
value of defined benefit obligation; and

c. Share-based payments - measured at fair value on initial recognition




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

fil.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of standalone financial statements in confarmity with Ind AS requires the
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions, These estimates, judgments and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial
statements, reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results may
defer from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis, Revisions in the
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements:

i Business model assessment

il. Fair value of financial instruments

ili. Effective interest rate (EIR)

iv. Impairment of financial assets

V. Provision for tax expenses

vi.  Residual value, useful life and indicators of impairment and recoverable value of property,
plant and equipment

Presentation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements of the Company are presented as per Division |l of Schedule 111,
as amended, of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ('MCA'). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows. The disclosure requirements with respect to
items in the Balance Sheet and Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the
Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along
with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and RBI
regulations to the extent applicable.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance
Sheet. They are offset and reported net only when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an
unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent
on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a
net basis when permitted by Ind AS,

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

1. Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for
financial instruments,

The Company has an established contral framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. The management has the overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer.

>




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
If third party information, such as braoker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair
values, then the management assesses the evidence abtained from the third parties to support
the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair values of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation te:hniques as follows.

* Llevel I: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

* Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

= [Level 3: inputs far the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset
or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.,

2. Financial instrumeants

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payables,
loan receivables, investments in securities and subsidiaries, debt securities and other
borrowings, preferential and equity capital are some examples of financial instruments.

All financial instruments are at amortised cost, unless otherwise specified,
All the financial instrurnents are recognised on the date when the Company becomes party to

the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. For tradable securities, the Company
recognises the financial instruments on settlement date.

i. Financial assets
Initial measurament

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value including transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets except in the case of financial assets recorded at
FVTPL where the transaction costs are charged to profit or loss. Generally, the transaction price
is treated as fair value unless proved to the contrary.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amaortised cost:
= Fair value through other comprehensive income ('FYOCI)

- Fairvalue through profit and loss ['"FVTPL’)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. The Company
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of
any write down for impairment}, unless the asset is designated at FVTPL:

i.  thefinancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

ii.  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets measured at Falr value through other comprehensive Income {(‘FVOCI')

A financial asset is measured at FVOCH if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

I. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets: and

ii. the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') an the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss ["FYTPL')

A financial asset which is not classified in above category is subsequently measured at FYTPL,
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are recognized entirely in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,

Subsequent measurement
The assets classified in the aferementioned categories are subsequently measured as follows:

Financial assets at Amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost at each reporting period using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in standalone statement of
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition s recognised in standalone statement of profit
and loss .




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{farmerly known s Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at each reporting period at fair value. Interest income
under the EIR method, foreign gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Standalone Statement of
Frofit and Loss,

Equity investments designated at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at each reporting period at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in standalone statement of profit and lnss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to standalone statement of profit and loss .

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at each reporting period at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss,

il. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost ar FVTPL, A financial liability
is classified as at FYTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is designated as on initial
recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to
the substance of the cantractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of
directly attributable and incremental transaction cost,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount er premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs profit and loss,

The Company’'s financial liabilities include trade payables and other financial liabilities.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) when the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive to receive the
cantractual cash flows in a transaction in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain contral of the
asset.

i




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements

The Company sells, assigns (including Co-lending transaction) its loans to counter-parties
wherein the risk and reward of the asset is transferred for the entire/substantial portion of
the Loan. As per Ind AS 109, Financial assets are derecognized on the date of assignment
Any right on interest on sald portion of asset s recognized as a financial asset at fair value,
basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction estimated for prepayments
and defaults. Estimated costs to be incurred for servicin g the de-recognised portion is
recarded as servicing liability at fair value,

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount (measured at the date of de-recognition) and the consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognized in profit or loss.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecagnised.

Financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost are generally held for collection
of contractual cashflow. The Company on looking at economic viability of certain portfolios
measured at amortised cost may enter into immaterial and infrequent transaction for sale
of loans which doesn't affect the business model of the Company.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender an
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance
sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts
and itis intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known as Incred Financigl Services Limited)

MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements

W, Derivatives recorded at fair value through profit and loss

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following
characteristics:

s |ts value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates,
credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a nan-
financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e., the 'underlying'].

# It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than
would be required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar response
to changss in market factors,

e [tissettled at a future date.

The Company enters into derivative transactions with various counterparties to hedge its
fareign currency risks, interest rate risks and equity price risks, respectively. These include cross-
currency swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts, futures and options on equities.

Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is positive and
as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included
in net gain on fair value changes unless hedge accounting is applied.

wi, Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes
some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be
madified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other
variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to
the contract. A derivative that is attached to a financial instrument, but is contractually
transferable independently of that instrument, or has a different counterparty from that
instrument, is not an embedded derivative, but a separate financial instrument.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset / financial liability within the
scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it
applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid cantract.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives
and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging
instruments.
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{formerly known as Incred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

3

Share capital

Equity and preference shares are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction
fram equity, net of any tax effects.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment if any in the standalone
financial statements,

Business Combination

Business combinations of entities under comman cantrol are accounted using the “pooling
of interests” method and assets and liabilities are reflected at the predecessor carrying
values and the only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies. The
figures for the previous periods are restated as if the business combination had occurred at
the beginning of the preceding period irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

Impairment of financial assets

Overview of the Expected Credit Losses "ECL’) principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, ather debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this section all
referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment
under Ind AS 109,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected te arise over the life of the asset
(the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected
credit loss)

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting fram all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the partion of Lifetime ECL
that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 manths after the reporting date,

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on sither an individual basis or a
collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolic of financial
instruments. The Campany has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end
of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’'s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument, The Company does the
assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. Based on the above, the
Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:
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Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recagnition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit Impaired
upan origination are classified under this stage. The Company classifies all standard
advances and advances upto 30 days default under this category. 12'month ECL is
recognized on stage 1 exposures.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increzse in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is
considered as significant increase in credit risk. Lifetime ECLisrecognized for exposures with
significant increase in credit risk,

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact an the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this
stage.

W.e.fOctober 1, 2022, a financial instrument is considered as Stage 3 if the asset crosses 90
days pass due and remains in overdue category. This is aligned to the definition of default
for loan assets stipulated in RB| circular dated November 12, 2021 - “Prudential Norms on
Income Recognition, Asset classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances —
Clarifications” (the "RBI circular"). For exposures that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognized. Stage 3 exposures represent Mon-Performing Assets (NPA).

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting period, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
arortised cost and FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when
one or more evenls that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

- Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes thr following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event,

¢} The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company
would not cansider otherwise;

d} It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
rearganisation; or

e} The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The mechanics of ECL:

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the
expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the
difference between the cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as
follows:
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Probability of Default [PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given time horizon, A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the
portfalio.

While estimating the PD, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in
the economy and market it operates in. On annual basis, the Company analyses if there is
any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, private
cansumption rate, Gross national saving/investment, real wholesale & retail trade and
services with the estimate of PD. Typically, these macro-economic scenarios span a base
case, plus an upsid= and downside scenario.

The ECL model allows for multiple macro-economic scenarios to be reflected in a
probabilistic manner. The weights are reviewed an annual hasis.

Exposure at Default (EAD)- The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a
future default date.

Loss Given Default [LGD)- The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the
case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the
cantractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including
from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD,

In absence of enough historical data, LGD rates are adopted from RBI circular
“Implernentation of the Internal Rating Based (IRB) Approaches for Calculation of Capital
Charge for Credit Risk® by RBI dated December 22, 2011.- (RBI/2011-12/311
DBOD.No.BP BC.67/21.06.202f2011-12) .

The Company may also make additional impairment allowance based on its assessment of
risk profile and create safeguard from potential future events,

Write-offs

The Company writes off Retail secured and unsecured loans which have a days past due
(OPD) for more than 18 months and 15 months respectively. However, 3mall and Medium
Enterprises (SME) Secured and Unsecured Loans, are written off on a case-to-case basis,
based on the probability of recoverability. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Hedge accounting

The Company makes use of derivative Instruments to manage exposures to interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies
hedge accounting far transactions that meet specified criteria,

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
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includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the
hedging/economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged, hedge ratio and how the Company would assess the effectiveness of changes in the
hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective
in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed on an on-gaing basis to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

During the year, hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting and qualify as cash flow
hedges are accounted as follows:

Cash flow hedge

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability and could affect profit or
loss. For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly in OCI within equity
{cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised immediately as finance cost in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.
When the hedged cash flow affects the Statement of Profit and Loss, the effective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the carrespanding incame ar
expense line of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been
recognised in OCI at that time remains in OCI and is recognised when the hedged farecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When a forecast transaction Is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in OC| is immediately transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eqguivalents in the balance sheet caomprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management,
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9. Share-based payment arrangements

a. Thecostof equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the
grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

b.  That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled, The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting pericd has
expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest.

c.  When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense
recognised is the expense had the terms not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the
entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through the Standalone Standalone Staterment of Profit and Loss.

d.  The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

10. Lease Accounting

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be alease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
{including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together
with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that aption; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if
the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company revises the
lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of 2 lease

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes right — of — use
(“ROU") asset and a carresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

The lease liability is initially measured at amartised cost at the present value of the future
lease payments, The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing
rates.
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11.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (“OCI').

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the period and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if ary, related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset anly if, the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b} intends to realise the asset or settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
thatis not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
and loss; and

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised. Such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the reporting date. Taxes
relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCl is recognised in equity aor OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liahilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

12. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost ess accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

(i} its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates,

(i) any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management,

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis as per the vseful life given under Schedule ||
of the Companies Act, 2013, and is generally recognised in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Depreciation on additions f (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from / (upto)
the date which the asset is ready for use / (disposed of),

The useful life as per Schedule Il are as follows:

Asset Useful life as per Schedule |

Buildings : 60 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers and printers 3 years

Vehicles == | Byears |
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Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and conseguent advice,
the management believes that its estimated useful life as given above best represent
the period over which management expects to use these assets,

13. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets [computer software) are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its
purchase price including any import duties and other taxes {other than those subsequently
recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates, All other
expenditures are recognised in the Statement Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amaortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values over thelr estimated useful life using the straight-line method, and is included
in depreciation, amartisation and impairment in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,

The intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful life of 3 years.

Amartisation methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

14, Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of these assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of these asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the carrying amount of these assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for such excess
amount,

Inrespect of assets (except goodwill) for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior
periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that
the loss has decreased ar no langer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
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15.

16.

determined, net of depreciation or amartisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Revenue from operations

Recognition of interest and fee income or expense:

Dividend income is recognised on the date an which the Cormpany's right to receive the
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest methad,

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amaortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised
cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the recoverable amount of the financial asset. if the assetis no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Fee and commission income:

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial
assets to which Ind AS 109 ‘Financial instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive
assessment model as set out in Ind A5 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. The
Company identifies contract{s) with a customer and its performance obligations under the
contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to the performance obligations
in the contract and recognises revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance
obligations.

Loan related charges such as cheque bounce charges, foreclosure charges, are recognised
only on receipt basis,

Income from de-recognition of assets:

Gains arising out of de-recognition transactions comprise the difference between the
interest on the loan portfalio and the applicable rate at which the transaction is entered
into with the transferee, also known as the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future
EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction estimated for
prepayments and defaults, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the
transferee is recorded upfront, net off estimated cost, in the statement of profit and loss.
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17.

18.

Finance Cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on
respective financial instruments measured at amortised cost.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related sarvice is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid il the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Contribution to provident fund and ESIC

Company's contribution paid/payable during the period to provident fund and ESIC is
recagnised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Campany’s liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries,
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting pericd on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of prafit and loss.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return on
plan assets excluding interest income are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
corresponding debit or credit to Other Comprehensive Income {OCI). Remeasurements are
not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss in the subsequent period.

Compensated absence

The Company does not have a policy of encashment of unavailed leaves for its employees
and are not permitted to carry forward the leaves. Hence there is no liability towards
compensated absence.
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19. Foreign currency

20.

21,

22,

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency,
using the excharge rate at the date of the transaction. At each closing date, foreign currency
maonetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate.

Exchange differences that arise an settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each
balance sheet date of the Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as
income and expenses in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be transtated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are recognised in
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share ('EP5’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax
for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit / {loss) after tax for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby orofit far the period is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any <eferrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Segment Reporting

The Company operates In a single reportable segment i.e,, financing, since the nature of the
loans are exposed to similar risk and return profiles hence they are collectively operating
under a single segment, The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domestic.
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23, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

a.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation,

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.

Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeling the future obligations
under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on
the assets associated with that contract.

Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resaurces. When there is a
possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of cutflow of
resaurces is remote, no disclosure is made.

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts [including
derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. The Company assesses
its obligations arising in the normal course of business, including pending litigations,
proceedings pending with tax authorities and other contracts including derivative and long
term contracts periodically and ensures that appropriate treatment has been made as
required under Ind AS.

Contingent aﬁseis

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will
arise, the asset and related income are recognised In the periad in which the change occurs.

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each
reporting date.
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24,

25,

Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such
size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the
enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such items is disclosed separately as
exceptional items.

Standards issued but not yet effective upto the date of issuance of the financial
statements

The Ministry of Carparate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind A3 which are
effective from 01 April 2023,

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors.

(i1} Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more
useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures,

(iii} Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction -
Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind A5 12, so
that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

The amendrments applies to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available)
and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable
tempaorary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations.
Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101.

The above amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2023.The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerdy known as InCred Financiol Services Limited)

KNoted ta the Standalone Financlial Statements

2. Cash and cash equivalents

(B8 in lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash on hand p ¥
Balances with barks 827 4,953.13
Fixed depaosit with bank with ariginal maturity of less than 3
manths 4 250,00
Total il B.27 5,203.13
3. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalerts
[Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars L] As at
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Earmarked fized deposits with banks * 2,991.35
Total = 2,091.36
* Earmvarked for borrowlings, bonk guarantee.
4. Derivative financial instruments at Fair Valua
[Rs. in lakhs
i As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[A) Derlvative financial assets
[I] Cross Currency Interest Rate Swapd
Cash flow hedge (Notional amount ; Nil, PY @ 5,110,00)* 299.22
[ii} Equity Linked Derivatives
Options and futures {Notional amount @ Kil, PY : 5,443.93) (Refer
note 12) 43 B231.83
Tenal & . 1,181.05
(8} Derivative financial labilities
Embrdded Derivative on Market Linked Debantures {Notional
amount @ Wil FY : 4,620.00) |Refer Note 12) - 1EG.87
Tatal 18687

*Derivative transactions comprise of currengy and interest rate swops. The Compoay undertokes such branioctions for

Fedging bavraadngs in forgign DUrmEncy.

5 Leans
R5. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
: Amortised cost | _Amortised cost

(&) [1) Term loans 332.03 1,62,323.85

{ii] Laans repayable on demand - -
Tolal - Gross [A) 332.03 3,32,323.85
Less: Impairment loss allowanee {187.00} 19,097.43)
Total - Ket of impairment loss allowance [A) 145.03 3,73,126.42
[B) {i] Secured by tangible assets® - 1,54, 364,85

{ii) Covered by Bank and Government guarantees = 4,778.52

{iii) Unsecured 332.03 2,23,160.48
Total - Gross (B) 332.03 3,E2,323.E5
Less: Impairmaent foss allowance (1B7.00] 19,037.43)
Total - Net of impairment foss allowance |B) 145.03 3,73,226.42
{C) Loans in India
1i] Public sectors . -
(i1} Others 332.03 382323 5
Total - Grass () 332.03 3,82,323.85
Less: Impairment loss allowance [187.00) [9,097.43]
Total - Ret of impairment loss allowance (] 14503 3,73,226.42

* Secured by charge an immovoble properties, vehloles, inrentories and recelvabies,

e,
7:"_'.-
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&. Investments

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As Al XL
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(A) At Amortised Cost
- Debt securities - 855.47
(B) At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
(Fvoct)
- Debt securities - 2,909.12
{C) At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
- Mutual funds -
{D) Others
Equity instruments
-Subsidiaries (Refer Note 31) - 4,915.00
- Convertible Preference Shares - 9.22
Total - Gross [E= A+B+C+D) - 8,688.81
Investments in India (F) - 8,688.81
Total - Gross [(G) - 8,688.81
. . . - {0.03)
Less: Allowance for impairment |oss on amortised cost [H)
Less: Allowance for impairment loss EVOCI (1) = {9.25)
Less: Allowance for impairment loss others {J) - :
Total - Net (G- H - J) - 8,679.53
* Investments at amortised cost are olf clossified as Stage | under credit risk
** Others are measured at cost
7. Other financial assets
{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
: Amortised cost Amortised cost
Security Depaosits (Unsecured, considered good) - 304.83
Retained interest on loans derecognised = 336.68
Receivable from related parties [Refer note 31) - 521.3%
Balances with partners/fanchors - 746.31
Margin money deposit - 150.00
Receivable from Government 17.46 59.59
Interest Receivable on Income tax refund 130.96 -
Others 0.13 617.93
Less: Allowance for impairment loss - -
Total 148.55 2,736.69




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known os InCred Fingnclal Services Limited)

Notes ta the Standalone Financial Statements

8. Deferred tax

The major compenents of deferred tax assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

(P4, in lakhs)
Particulars Net balance Recognised in Demerger Recognised | Met balance as at
April 01, 2022 profit or loss Adjustm ent inOCl March 31, 2023
Deferred tax assels
Pravision for impalrment loss on financial instruments 2,282,581 17.18) 12,228 55) - 47.07
Prowision for retirement benefit plans 7899 0.31 (78 53) - 031
Disallowance of merger expensas 14B.€9 {148 £9)
Lease lizbility 67.27 [67.27) - -
Fair value change on financial instruments 57.92 [57.92) -
Difference between written down value of property plant and
equipment and Intangible assets as per the boo's of accounts
and income tax 83,51 - (9B 51) X
(&) 2,734.18 [6.87) [2,679.53) - 47.38
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair walue change of investment valued at Fair value through
] (2.97) . 297 .
EIR imgact on financial instruments [632.55) {1.62) 634.17 - {0.0d0)
Others 0.00 . 000 = k
(&) {695.52) {1.62) 597.14 - [0.00)
Deferred tax asset [net) (A-B) 2,038.66 (B.49) {1,982.79) 47.18
[Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Net balance Recognlsed in Demerger Recognised | Met balance as at
April 01, 2021 profit or loss Adjustment In OCI March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets
Provision for impalement loss on financial instruments 2,107.35 175.45 . 2,1E2.81
Fravision for retirermnent benefit plans 33.E9 15.23 21387 JB.99
Disallowance of merger expensas 119,56 22,13 - 148,69
Lease liability 54.18 13.09 - E67.27
Fairvalve change on financial instruments 5375 4,17 57.92
Ditferance between written down value of property plant and
equipment and Intangib'e assets as per the books of accounts)
ard ingome Tax 71.45 27.06 - 98,51
{A) 1,392.44 313.72 - 18.04 2,734,19
Daferred tax liabilities
Fair value change of investrment valued at Fair value through
aCi 125.98] 26.99 12.97]
EIR impact on financial instrurments (504.B1) (187.74) [692.55]
Others {0.28) 0.28 0.00
(=] {535.05) {160.47) - {695.52)
Deferred tax asset [net) (A-B) 1,857.39 153.25 18.04 2,038.67
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerfy known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements

10. Other intangible assets

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Ui
software
Year ended March 31, 2022
At cost at the beginning of the year 762.12
Additions during the year 107.08
Gross carrying value as March 31, 2022 869.20
Accumulated amortisation:
Accurnulated amortisation as at the beginning of the year 230.63
Amaortisation for the year 140.94
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022 680.57
MNet carrying value as at March 31, 2022 188.63
Year ended March 31, 2023
At cost at the beginning of the year 869.20
Additions during the year
Transfer on account of Demerger (869.20)
Gross carrying value as March 31, 2023 -
Accumulated amaortisation:
Accumulated amaortisation as at the beginning of the year 680.57
Amortisation for the year
Transfer on account of Demerger (680.57)
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023 -
Met carrying value as at March 31, 2023 -
11, Other non-financial assets
{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
: Amortised cost Amortised cost
Prepaid expenses - 294.29
Advances recoverable in kind {Unsecured, considered good) 0.43 94.73
G5T receivable 895.87 891.53
Total B896.30 1,280.55
Ly
(i a7 -

IR (S



InCred Prime Finance Limited

(Farmerly brcrwn as indred Firaencia! Sivvices Lisaied)

Notes Lo the Sandikors Financial $atements

12, Dkt Securities
{R3. b Labi]
At | A at
Partioutars March 31, 1913 - March 31, 33
Arortised coil Amarthsed cost
Dekerures - 95E23 00
(Cormaraiial Papti i 10.240.77
Tetal - 1,065,523, 77
Dbt Scuritied in inda . 10652377
Crebt Securities outside inda . -
Total ; . 1,048,520, 17
Terms rE_l:uﬁd&om. [R5, i k)
Sr Mol Particulars Kature of securiny Terma of repapent Maturiey date M LR,
iy March B1, 2023 | March 31, 3023 |
11750, 10258 Secured Rated Lbted Redeemable Bedeemable 2t parat the erd of L0SE days bom the date of aflotment 26 RordL ! -
Mon-Comeerible Deberturss of Ra 1000.000( 1 Won- Convirible Debentures Bsaed by the Cionpeon bo b paid ancaly.
Each comphoy i secured by way of a first park passu
2[1000, 9 50% Setured Rited Lated Mecrerable|shirie over the recefvadles of the Compary 15 U (Rt rabie 5l par it Ehe erd of 583 drys Fom the date of slotment, Hrecl -
o Corverible Debentures of IN® 10000002010t they meet the stipulated security over Conpeon b Bt piid anvrae by and on maturty
Ealnal ("Hypothecaced Recebeables™) craated pacseaal to
3500, 8.79% Secured Rated Lsted Radsamabis hoothe deed of ypothe tation aituted by the Pedsenable ¢t par at the erd of 1035 days fram tre date of alltment 12023 5,313 52
Convertbie Debertures of INR 10,00,000 gach  [COTRany in fawoar of e Debantucs Trastes, Coepeon bo ke pad srmiaty.
2. LAfroraly seountd by wiay of 8 picl- paniy
81,000, 9.95% Secured Rated Lhled Redesmabls mﬁ;shm;ﬁs{t“”mm‘;:e Redeenabie ¢ paw ot the end of 1095 days from e dite of alictment & uin-23 . 1055383
Mor-Convertite Debentures of INA 3000000 " sy it ) Coupon to ke prd srraz'hy. 1
TR
each
5500, 9 50% Secured Fated Listed Baddumakie Noy Fedesnatie 3t par a5 the end of 545 days Fom the date of alocment. T dan-22 - -
Covreertible Debentores of INR 50000000 sach Corupon to be padd semi-anaily.
61500, 3.40% Secured Rated Listed Redesmable Moy Fedeemable af par a2 the end of 549 days rom the date of alooment. IDFab-2T - -
Ciowveit it Debpnboras of INR 1000000 e ach Cowupon 1o be paid areally ard o matuey.
T| 750, 3.40% Seiurid Rt ed Lnled Redeemab'e N Fedesmabie at par at the enad of 549 days Yo e date of aloomant. 14-bhar-17 - -
Cewmvidtitfa Dabardores of INA 1000000 aach \Covipon B bt paid sevmi- arwvaally,
Mone Covreride Dot tores mEued by Lha
#2540, !.mhur:dﬂ-lu-dla:udkdmlbe MM covmpany are sacured by way of 3 RELLparF pais Rldlt'nlbltltﬂ::lrll:ﬂ‘l eved of 347 darys Yo U date of aletrman, (- Jum- 11 - 2843
Lervectile Debestures of (NA 1000000 pach £hacg ovie the recebiables of The Corgany 1o the ez L0 b paid arbirky,
alerh Ehay mael the st deted sevurity cover
4 “Hypcthecated Recervables®] created pursuant to
she deed of hypothe abion executed by the
Comipary in Favoor of the Debarture Trusbes
911150 10 95% Secured Rated Livtes Fadearabo Nan- Fadee Tabhe nith dgreed coupon at Uw ard of 2131 dig from the date 2024 - 1212862
Corel i Okacsores of 180 50,50 000 mach ef aletrmpnt, Subject to @ Put Optich o Cil Option af the erd of 1035
gk
10| 521,370, 7% Sepwred Bated Listed Becewratie hoa Redeenable with sgreed cowpon a1 the end of 358 days Fom the date of] 17-Fes-11 - 520354
Lonwertit e Deberrares of T8 1000 kach Nan- Convertive Debentures svsed by the whetment
Cormpary are secured by way ol @ A0St rarking
10| 1,156,424, 3.15% Sz red ated Lated Recemasin Mo o0 <58 & consituing Rirdia miakla mith agredd cengan 1 U brd of 702 days Fom the date ol 17.Fes24 . 212515
Sonaertitie Debertanes od INE 100G Bach £hange ersabind ovie iplad bock Flatmeed
et bedn recehrablis (ke
"HrpsthecHied Asiebs") pursuant to the deed of
12 [52835, 913 Secured Rated Livted Redesmaltie Mon- Soes well b raderad on tra date a1 the ded ol 355 diys a5 remalning 17-Fek-14 . 107 31

Cefairiis'e Celerducey of INT ] 00 each

ypothecrtion executed by the Comparty in freter
of the Deberture Trastes.

0% an tha o of T30 clirgd Tror thae diite of aliciment.




InCred Prirme Finance Limited

[ty kedin o5 IsCred Finascial Servces Limited)

Nated to the Stendslone Financial Statements

12. Debt Seouities

13158, Secured Redpirrable Principal Protected - kedeemable with agreed coupon at the end of 75 days from cha Sat4 of| Jo-Bep-21 =
Mt Lirked Mon-Corrvertble Deberture of INR dletment.
10.00,000
14] 348, Secured Redeerable Principal Protected - RedeeTable mith agrieed coupon i the end of 732 darys from tre date of|  18-Dec21 .
KWarket Urked Moa-Comrveridde Debenture of INR allotrrand.
10,00, 000
15500, Stgured Ridpiirabls Privcipal Protectes - Fadip ke with sgreed coupon ot the end of TH days rom the date LE-Fab-TF £
Wark#t Lisked Bon-Comaertible Debanture of INR alictrent
160,00, LR
16| 5580, Secuned Redenmatle Principal Protected - FedeeTable with agreed cougon at tha e0d of 911 daga Fom the date of a3-%ar-23 800 18
Warket Linked Non-Cormreribde Debentore of INA akctment.
20,000, 00
17| 150, Ssowred Redeprmalia Prircpsl Protected - Fadda Table with agreed coupon 8t the ed of 910 days From the date of] 28-Juk-73) LERT O3
Markas Lisked Mon-LormertBle Delrture of NG afcrment
A, G000
!81151.M$mlm'1ﬁhhﬂwl Frofected - Redeenable with agreed coupon at the end of B85 darps o the dirte off 20-0ct-31 405 9
Market Unkesd homrConvertble Detesture of INK atctment iIf RETY final flving fevel s grea‘er than or equl to 2% of they
16,00,000 Invtial fling bevel o else 2t pas : [ R
151154, 0% Secured Redeemable Frincigal Frecected » Fededmabie with agried coupon al the end of 723 dares fomi the date of]  26-May-23 165875
Wlarket Lirked hoa-Comritle Debestore of INL M- Corrdertdle Mirket- Unbed Debentores ssued | @letmast il RFTY firsd Fieg bevel 8 greater thin & eqal to 255 of £
10.00,300 by thet Eompary are secured by way of a first parl | isinial finkeg lewel or elie at par
20| 159, (% Serwned Redeematie frincip Frotected - pazsu charge over the recebvables of tha Compary | Redeemabie with agreed coupon at tre erd of 1211 days from the dute D&-Ouct-24 180088
Market Urked Mos-fonvenile Debentore of INL bo the extent thiy Mot thie stplated prouity of alictrent if WEETY Firal fadeg level B ieacer than or equad g0 25% o
£0.00,000 Cover | THypothecatod Racoivabian”] erated thee initial fiaie g bevel or else a8 pas
21| 150, O Sasured Badaamable Frincpil Probected - Parbudnd o tha dikd of Fypelheciton pnsited by |Redasmabie wik sgreed coupon it 1he eod of 1011 digs from the ditg HAL e 151753
larcat Lisked Mon-Comvertible Dabarturs of Pt ra Coamparty i Perveid of the Desecture Truster.  |af aletmsnt if RETY firsd finlag level 5 grester than o gl 8o P55 o]
io.coom nhe iitinl finicg el ar ehie ot par
232|200, O Secered Redesmabile Princpal Frotected - Eadeemable with sgreed coupon a1 the erd of 518 davys from the date of | TDer i 2.132.32
Pharket Linkied hon-Convetible Debenture of IR allotmeenk f MIFTY Bral fiskng kevel & greate than or equal to 25% of the
10,00, 000 initial Baorg bevel or else at par
23 |00, O Sacurid Ridia mabi Friccipal Proticted - Fard Tiabhe with agredd ooegon 3% 1 o of TEL days from tha date T-Aug-13 139,44
Packet nked hon-Convect bie Debarture ol IR abctrmant i NIFTT Bral flaing kel i greats thas of #cuil 1o 25% of 1he
190,00, 500 initial fairg bvel o #lie ¢l par
J4 1320 TN Secured Redeemable Frinciza’ Frotected - BefeeTable with agreed coupon at the erd of 343 days from the date 12-2pe: 28 3309.36
B k! L i) Boc- Do o T D Lot 0 AN alctment i NFTY firal filng vl & greaty than or egual o 25% of the
15,060,000 Inizial fiadrg beved of else at par
25| TH, 0% Secured Redesmatie Frinciasl Frotected - Padan ribile with agreed covpon at the end of 911 dir Fom the date E3-hear- it L0z
Markest Unbed bon-Coneeriible Detesture of INE alctmant if WETY fical fing level i greater thae or equal to 29% of the)
10,0000 Intial finirg leved or else ot par
26|00, {Fn Seured Redabnatle Frincigal Frecacoed - Redeenable with agreed coupon at the end of S4T days bom the date off I3-Jan13 £0E103
Market Lirked hoe Lonsertibls Debestore of INE atotment if RFTY final fining fevel i greale than o equal 0o 25% of tha
30,00, 000 initial fising lesel or else a1 par
27170 % Seecured Redeerable frincipsl Protected - RirdedMia's with agrisd eoupon ot U ard of 1505 diys rom the dityy  0-Viay- 25 1,705 8
Marcet Lisked Noo-{oeseritls Debentore of 1N ol alotresns i HIFTY Miedl Faieg level & preter [en o egusl e 25% of]
1000000 Urst bnial finke g ool o #lie 01 pas I- rereeaieerii]
701,200, % Secured Receematie Fracpal Frocecned - Redeemabie with agreed coupon st the end of 605 days bom the date ol C4-Janl3 10,780 61
Mariet Lisked Na-Corvnkl Dikartons of BE whotmert F KIFTY final faorg kevel b grester than o egqual to 15% of t'a)
10,0000 iratial fving bewnl of Blie at par
1. Frst reciing and - maciusive chasge over the
identfed Recetvables togethar with al righa, s
ard inbarast i reation charals indhading o rights
i orelitkan fo [he BRourfy interests created i)
connection thereaith:
& A Frst rankicg ard esche®e charge over the ety
Colateral;
397500, 0%, Sacorid Radeamaks Prrcipal Protected - | Eedeemable with agreed coupon at the end of BA2 s from Eha date of] 03-&pr-T1 TA53.55
Marked Lnhed hon-Conaert bie Datarture of INK t’" ok .rﬂh‘ M DA, m'[" iy atiotmaent i NIFTr.:ralfhk'l.[ level & groatarthan -:':'Imﬂ o 15% of 2%
o gk ity el interast ol tha Coopary o the SPY Trust, el g vl o 4 WL st
whether a3 residual beoseficiany or in connectiony
with the costribaton undertaben to be made
availatie by the Company 10 U 5P Trust in by
of Chib Bssigreraat Doumgals,
28| Commercial Pager Issad Bt @ dscownt ard redednae al pa The Serure & 22 dags 1o 163 A 1082077
Urssoured digs with ir icbrigé dintoust rite of 2135 2.9,
Total LOESIETT
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13, Basrowings {uthar than debl securitves)

firsl pici pakis chirgs guer il the receiviblis;
tach pracend wrd Mture of oe Company; to the
enterk Ty maet e requireriend of each fender's]
et cover  Migulited dn rmpsct o
cutnaneng faciizen

lirari rargie from 2812 34 morrhe ¢ as sverage R00 04 10 24% 2.

(R iy lak®al
LY 5% LA
Farticulany March 13, 1921 Murch 11, 2011
18] Term lains
{il frem barks % 14245001
] frem cthar parties f 15,833.717
B rker corperate borrowirgs o elated parties ¥ u
Je] i morprane bodvomings Irom other parties B &850 00
{d] Loars repayable oo demand . -
) P barks - aFHT
o) Commarcial Papers - -
Tetal . 1,75,065.4%
Borrow'ngs in brecla & 1439, T35.0T
Eorromii i datide lihia - 5,511 8]
|Tetsl ] 1,75 055 45
faste - P Doreoan g o Banks 0 fAoncin’ BT tutoss A Been ied for (e Bt iE purpcse S i bazh
wOF [HdEs
Tdid i Corefitanis {As. i fakhs]
LR At
Fartculars mﬂh\ﬂ-‘?‘l Terma of repayrent Bsech 11, 203 arch 31, 2022
%
ot rowings
! Baski Teres Loan froes Sarks a'e secured By wiy of 2l Loans are repayabie in manchly of guane’y irshiiments & th origins] - 1424500
{rst pard pasee charpe over all the recevables;Herure ranging from 10 to B2 morths # a0 gairage nabe &f wleran
tath pradect nd Fature of B Company; 13 ] IPROF o S 005 p s
atiel thary Pl O equTerient of sach lenders
pssed  oower Mipedaded In respect of  phe
s tslbrecing Faciites,
b Dithary Term Lo from Gotery doe decursd by owip o 3l Lokes bre repivibis o mecebly & guictedy Islilimasis a'ch oiging . 14, 505.55

b Chkers- [rleral commarein Bair ormic g

Tiem Loar from Orhar b securd By wiy of a
dret pari pawis charpe over ab the recevables;
Gkt presend ged Fatorn of tha Compiny; b e
At Uhieg Sabd D regaTEeiing of dach kender's
asset  oower  stpelated Ino respect oof e
e biameing Feciises

Loan i repayatle on maburity ¢ thie end of 63 marths.
Wkerest linbed b UBOE prd payebie ol seacky,

WO e 6}

Canh Crect [FCC™; Frarm Barka dre sicoried By miy
of a st pari passu oharge over al B recoivabies;
Eoth presend ard Fatore of the Company b the
wutent Ehay maed P requairemiecd of gath lercer's]
akebt covlr atipulated dn reper of re
cutianding faciites

ot 1 pdar it S papatie on 3 monthly Basi B aa verage RD) of
LS4 pa,

|40k Lo serite b eadngs from related partes Linsecard The temore |y § manths, nteret Iy er-ﬂl e g meanthly Bisi 8% .

|Feter hokbe 1] bvetags FOIef 950% pa

I=ter corpenrs Borcaings from el parte Lirsicarind Thi teaure B 1 oot b 3 mronths, rberest 15 papable on 2 monthly - LR Tede ]
bass ol e Feerage ROH cf 9. 14% p o

Leand repayatle or demand ‘Wordong Captel Damard Losns {"8CDLT) srd] 00/ WODL Feclitien are repapedle on demaced with recasnd 8 B el - L FEN S

Corearsia’ Fager

Lirriiiar id

Thi Eerare is 364 da s with dscont rate of 3.00% 0 3.

Teeal

1,705,555 45




InCred Prime Finance Limited

{formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements

14. Other financial liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Lease liability (Refer Note 34) - 2,141.57
Collaterals from customers . 3,098.48
Security deposits 55.35
Payable on servicing portfolio - 106.13
Provision for expenses 2.09 2,734.66
Payable to Related parties 1,108.00 -
Others 0.21 21.74
Total 1,110.30 8,157.93
15. Provisions

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 32) 1.27 313.84
Expected credit loss provision on undrawn
commitments - 9.42
Total 1.27 323.27
16. Other non-financial liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars

As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Statutory dues payable 223.48 900.48
Total 223.48 900.48




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(Formarly kncwn as WOred Firascial Sivvices Limined)

Notis 1o thi Standslong Financlsl Statements

17 (), Equity share capital iRy, i ek
2 AS ot March 11, 3001 Ad a1 March 31, W22

Particulars ] Harsbk Amaurt Husbsr At
Bakeriued Capatal i

Bty ihargs of e 1)- esch® 30,00 00,000 1,01,100.00 200,10,00,000 2,00, 10800
Tetal 40, 11,00,00,000 2,0, 103 0 201,10,00,000 3,00, 10005
(idued, subseribed and pild vp cagital

Egeity Shares of Re. 1/ each fuly paid up® Lk gy 34 563 3,50 36 14 65 03651 B AL FT
Taotal 38,80,25,963 B ERD 36 35,45,00 651 35 450,17
FThf Fack sclw &F i Acthorhed shore copdtal of Bhe 0ompony was redut el 2 A T wicke Secar 2o iid MR 06, 2072 poSEe Dy NLET. AT D0 BUAch A3t on g Lo Lorpea i SRt of

Amgigamston and drargarend among Ree Fingnoe Limeted, (" Trasgfessr Cemparny™) and K8 Coplted Markets Indio fnepde Limited, [ Tronsfenss Compaeny™) ong inCrid Financial Samacm Dimited, [“Damergnd
Compory” or "Compony”] ond KLR nd Firgncio! Servces Limted, [“Pasuting Compary ) and their respective shareholders woder Sections 230 - 232 reod szt Secrons 68 ard 204 of the fompan'es At 2210 read
=k (OTpamiET (COMErDmses, Arasgenents aod daaipaeetiond) Ruim, 2074

Termafrights attached to eguity shares
Tree compay has ondy ore class of equty shares Faving pas valug of Re. 1 per share fuly paid up Eech hoider of eguity shares is eastied to one vobe per share, The comgany declares aod pays

drvdend in Incfan Rupees. The deiderdd if ard whan gropoded By 10 Baird of Drectors wil be subject tothe approval of sharehoidens in the ensuisg Ancuel Gerersl Mesticg escept in case of
rerim devderd

inthe evert of houidation of the comaary, the haidars of U égaty share will be ertithed bo receve remalnng aasets of the company, a'ter distrbution of al preferertial amorts. The
dstriestion will 2 in proporTon [0 tha Feamsbar oF 23Ty Shiees hdid By the sharehaldens.

Bty shares held by kolding compary
Dot o thar aguity Ghares inised by the compary, shares held by ity holding company ¢
Rarehoid As at Moarch 11, 3071 As at March 11, J71

pnd S, af shares beld Amaount Sz, of shares held Amound,
IrCred Hatfings Lisoved [Larmacly kngan b K08 Capitsl Markets Ir-dp
Luratiedj® 1303,73,135 1303.73 - =
B Finarde Leviited |Miuritius]. the hoiding commpe : - FERENENT ] 1303711
Totsl 23,038,713, 125 LM H 03,7315 3303101

*Purksl o Compasite Joheme of Amaipamation end Arrargeme 1, Bee Finarce Uimited bof been merped bndo InCred Heobdings Lmited (forme fy browen a5 08 Copital Movkels bl (imdred)

Equity shares held by prometens of the company
Dt of The ity 4haead miued By tha compiny, shares Feld by (b promaders:

As at March 31, 2021 M3 a1 March 31, 302t
Nuime of sharehold —
e ot ML W of shares held % of shases held P, of shares held % ol shares held
Iered b dicgs Limited {forrrarty krcawn a3 EER Capidal Martet: Ivda
Lirmitec* 13.03,73 125 AT - -
Bee finance Limited (Mauritius), the Rolding company™ 2 [Wens ]
Shupinder Singh 25,19,554 GESn 1355 OGS
Tebal 13.28,92,673 [ 25,158,554 [
*Puortart to Composie Srheme of Arsigamation ond Amosgeme 1, Bee Fnorce [imited has been marged ints InCred Haldiegs Limdted [evstwhie Lnaan as KO8 Copirsl Marksri fedia
Limited) w e f July 28, 2002
Dietals of sharehelder(s] hobfing mare than 5% of tha total squity thared in the fompany
! hl”ﬂlf Ty As at March 31, 2022
Mame of sharehcider 3] r.
o, of shares held % Mok No.of shares held % Holding

Irred Hotfings Urited formerly knowr a3 008 Capeta’ Markets Inda
Lirrit ], the hakding corsam 130373155 53 3TN - -
Bre finarce Limited |Mawritius], the hoiding com pamy® - - 01, 73,105 [281
Crakg Bagst Maakiamasd Privite Limated [formerky brown as “hlpha Captal 2.56.81.506
Achisory PH_EEE Limwted A0C PMST) 2 0 67N 18643733 5 IE%
Total 156154731 65 04% 4,9, 16,518 To.28%
APureanl [ Compasite oheme of Amalpametion and Armengement, Bee Finance Limited has Bren merped into inCred Moldings Limited (erstwc bl koo as XA Copinal Markers lngia
Limebed] wer f boly 26, JOR2
Bggregate somber of shares Bioed for pongidaration sthr thas cash duriag tha paried P @ pacied of five yibes immedintely priceding
Drrirg the currerd firarciad year the Compary has B3ed Nl egaty shares for consideration cther than tash (Frevioss year; KL
Bty shares resenciation

A5 at March 31, 2023 AS ot March 11, 2ok

Particuls
2 Moarnbar &, Humber Aot
AE AR b ginads g ol 16 pear 15 45,01 651 15,450 . 0 w7727 5E 3T
4d- 1 i

Shares isvoed during the year . 5
Stoch opUons Eneried durng tha year &3 £33 LN 17 A can 17341
Pralere s £hl o cornel rad Inta egaity shies LA TRE 13475 450,365,565 220167
Less: inpact of reduction in face vahie per share from Rs. 1050 Re 1 . |34,522 33, e .
Btk erd of the year BB B33, 563 BERD 26 35,4500, 651 00 35,450.26

For shares reserved for issua under Employes Stock ootion plas - Bpfer Note No 33




17 (B). Preference thire ca

. As at March 31, 3023 Ad 01 Mach 31, 322
Particulars Harmker Basunt MNumber Adrazand
Rtharaed Capital
Preference Shares of Rs. 1) pach® % 00 00, 00 50 9,50 00 000 G500 0
Total 5%, 0, 040,000 500,03 5.50.00,000 350000
Etudd, subseribed and pafd vp copital
Frafarince Shares of ke 10 each fully paid® s i 334 A4 3,547.56
Tetal - g 1,04, 79628 3,34T.5%

* The Foce volie of the Authortied Shove condal of the company mer nedced from N9 10 Te WH I wike oeder dofed Moy G5, 2022 possed by NCLT, Moy Sench jonctoning Che (omposte Schene of
Amalgamaron aad Araspesesd omong Sar Finonce Limdted, Trosfence Goyped ] and K8 Cop/fal Markets ndhs Priaate Limined, ( Trocsfier Comeony”] 002 nCred Ftoncn Senates Listid, [Daserged
Cormpadng” of “Camzaty™) asd Kk Indla finarcks! Services Limined, "Fesulting Compony®) and thelr nespertive sharebalders Usder Setions 253 - 207 ryod wich Secions 66 ond 2348 of the Compdran Azl 3011 iod

with Camgoniss [Camprpmives, Arengements gnd Erabp=ares] B, 218

Terers frightn stteched to prefererce shares

Each Currelitve Compnlaooy Comreertible Preferenca Share ("COCPS") shall be 2 0.001K cowpon preferesce share davamivuted in tedisn Ruptes ard ghal be fully and comolitvely tompuboniy

eervertible within a perod of 19 years From tha date of (her faue,

Each heldar of COCPS ifall have wach rights to atbend and wote a2 gararal maatiogs i prescrited by the Comparies Bot and other appleable ws Fom tme to tre and a6 spacfad uder ta
Ariiehes of Asseiption. Furlher 1o the aforesald, for the porposd of 4ot ng the halder of the CECPS shail be deemed Eo have coraried sl it OOCFS nto EQuity Shares and shall hivs viteg
Fighas &0 every reda'uton placed before the Comparry on ke Baus of s shicehaldng in the Compary o0 a8 "as cormimed™ Bagh o Fuly [Oued Basis, L8, 3550ming the cermopriien of 6 [ha

CCLPT ki bry i€ inbo Egulty Shares.

Freferarce shires hald by bolding compiny: Hil {F7 1 W)
Prefarince ihares held by promcten of the company: Wil {PY: ME)
Detadls of shareholideris) holding more than 5% of the total praference shares in the compary
ek ¥ A ab March 31, 3013 As ot March 11 3022
Ll Lt No. of shares held % Hilding Mo, of shares held X Holding
Bee finarce Limited (Mauritiug), the baldng oom pey a - - Dol
Nederlandse Flrarcigringi-Maatschappi voor O-twitkelngslander MY, - = [
Dk Aaset Management Private Limited (formarly brawn a5 "Alsha Capitsl
Adviscrs Private Limited AAC PMS") . - T A1ELE 2162
Total - - 73,371,813 TLETH
Freference shares reconcifation
o s 3t March 31, 2023 i A3 ot March 51, 2012
] i Murnbar Aaan] Numbser At
Bz A beginning of the yeas 3,796 LHLE A5, 16,289 7ALLEY
B2 g Saring the year
Sharis faed during the period - i . .
Praferdnde shares coqeerled into eqity shares [3,34, 79 £24) |8,347.5% |&,50,35 £65) [#,503 -5:']]
At the wrd of the year - 0.00 3.34,73.514 1,347,956
Detals of tharebcider(i] holding maore than 5% of tha total shares In tha company
As at March 31, 2023 As 91 March 31, 2022
i e W, of shares heid % Hziding Mo of shares hedd % Holding
Ea Fnarce Limitid [Mpuritian], the bobding company - - . 0 D05
Wedérlaradse Finsrcerings-Mastschappd voor Drtwkietingslandan NV, - - - O00%
Daks Asset Maragamas Provite Limited [Tormerdy kncwn a3 "Woba Captal
Bhdpars Frivite Limvted A7C FNI5°) - = 258 81,606 EETH
Totad . - 150,81 606 L X0s]
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formecly kngwn @i InCred Fingneial Senvices Limited)

HNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements

19. Interest incoma

(As. in lakhs)

PBacrl cilare Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

On financial assets measured at amortised cost:

Jnterest on loans 74,85 A5, 74665

-Interest income from investmeants 5675

sAnterest on deposits with banks 12117

On Financlal Assets measured at fair value through profit

or loss:

dnterest on boans

On Financial Assets measured at falr value through Other

Comprehensive Income: = *

-Interest incame from investments : 60253

Total 74.85 A47,334.45

Male - N revdnae friem Fansesiods with @ 84 fudiomer crmounted b 109 or move of the Campoy’'s foba! revence for the yeor

ended 31 Mareh J02F e 30 Maroh 2022,

20, Fees and commissian income

{Rs. in lakhs)
PartTeulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2021
Loan servicing and administration charges 261 GEG.24
Service fees (Refer Mote 31) 56,00
Tatal 2161 1,022.24
Geographical Markets
WWithin India 161 1,022.24
Cutside india - .
Tatal 2 1.61 1,022.24
Timing of revenue recegnition
Services transferred at a point in time 2.61 102224
Services transferred over time
Tatal 1.61 1,022.14
Note: For receivob's balonces ogoinst the income, refere note na &
21. Met gaing {loss) on falr value changes
[Rs. in lakng}
Year ended Year ended
s March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Het gaind (boss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
-lnvestments 13233
-Derivatives i34.54)
Total - 93319
Fair value changes:
-Realised - 132493
-Unrealised - 134.E4)
22, Otherincome
[Rs. in lakhs)
Ll e Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Markeling income - 1,764,00
Business suppart charges (Refer Nate 31) - 1,349.32
Interest on Income tax refund 130.97 130
Cthar income . 307 215.22
Tatal 134,04 3,330.04




InCred Prime Finance Limited
fformerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements

23. Finance costs

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulare Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost;
(i} Interest on borrowings - 10,593.94
(ii) Discount on Commercial Paper - 487.26
(i) Interest on Debentures - 10,206.40
{iv) Interest on Inter Corporate Debts ("ICD") 18.00 280.46
(v) Interest on lease liability (Refer Note 34) - 198.43
{vi) Other finance cost : % 185.43
Total 18,00 21,951.92 |
24. Impairment on financial instruments

{Rs. in lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost:

(i} Loans {including amount written off, net of recovery) 23.51 4,360.72
(i) Investments - (3.90)
{iii) Others - (5.18)
Total 23,51 4,351.64
25, Employee benefits expenses

{Rs. in lakhs)
partiotiars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salaries and wages 50.88 10,685.21
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.88 270.31
Share based payment to employees (Refer Note 33) - 2,443.68
Staff welfare expenses 0.62 225.32
Retirement Benefit expenses [Refer Note 32) 0.16 60.52
Others - 2.22
Total 52.54 13,687.26




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(formerly known os InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

26. Other expenses

{Rs. in lakhs)

e Year ended . Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Information Technology expenses - 1,312.43
Collection expenses 11.98 1,150.94
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 12.04 1,137.49
Office Expense - 442.45
Travelling and conveyance 1.53 260.31
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion expenses 226.59
Rating fees - 189.75
Payment to auditors 1.00 111.83
Directors’ sitting fees (Refer Note 31) 29.78 45,35
Stamp Duty & Filing fees - 29,68
Bank charges 0.55 26,64
Repairs and maintenance - 21.22
Corporate Social responsibility (Refer Note 38) 43.43 16.35
Rent (Refer Mote 34) - 10.51
Membership and Subscription - 4.70
Miscellaneous expenses - 210.59
Total 100.31 5,196.83
Payment to the auditors:

(Rs. in lakhs)
partlanlas Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Auditor's remuneration
- Audit fees 1,00 68.33
- Limited review 18.97
In other capacity
- Certification services - 24.53
- Taxation 7 -
Total 1.01 111.83




InCred Prirme Finance Limited
(fermerly known as InCred Firandial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standafone Financlal Statements
27. Tax expense

{a) Amaunts recegnised In profit and loss

{Rs, in lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
RAE NS March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Current tax expense
Curdent year 6.64 1,358 68
Tam pertaining Lo previous years = =
Current tas expanse 564 1,358.68
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 849 {153.25}
Deferred tax expense B.40 {153.25|
Tax expense for the year 15.13 1,205.43

{b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive Inccme

[Rs. in lakhs)

Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars

Before tax [ax{aphie) Ket of tax Bafore tax 1% [shpaate) Het of tax

benefit benefit
Items that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss
[a] Remeasurements of defined benefit Hability [asset) (94.84) 13,87 |7087)
(b} Equity instruments through olher comprehensive income £ = 3
Items that will be reclassilied to profit o loss
la) Debt instruments threugh ather comprehensive income {120.30) 30.28 _|%203)
[215.14) 54.15 {160,559)

(£} Ameunts recognised directly in equity

Thera are na temporary difference recognsed direct’y ir equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Previaus Year: Mil]

{d} Recanciliation of effective tax rate

{Rs. in fakhs)

Year ended Year ended
Fajticiare March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Profit bafore tax as per Statement of profit and loss [A) 16.64 4,817.20
Statutory lax rate 15.1m% 35.17%
Tax using the Company's damestic Lax rate [B) 419 1,212.49
Tax effect of:
Tax effect of amaunts which are not deductible in eakculating
taxable income 10.94 415
Effect of income exempt from income tas - 125.17|
Tax pertairing to prior year .
Other adjustments - 13.95
Effective tax amaunt 1513 1,205.43
Effiective tax rate 10 B0.97% 25.08%




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{fermerly known os InCred Financial Services Limited)

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements

28. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted

average number of equity shares ocutstanding during the year,

1. Profit attributable to Equity shareholders:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March|Year ended March
i 31,2023 31,2022
PruTit attn.hutabIE to equity holders of the Company used in calculating 151 3.611.77
biasic earnings per share
P.ruht attruhytahle to equity holders of the Company used in calculating 151 361177
diluted earnings per share
ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
igh f ity sh d he d inator i
Welg ti?d averlage nl.{mher of equity shares used as the denominator in 38.80,26,000 38.60,17.437
calculating basic earnings per share (&)
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share (B) 21,16,274
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares
used as the denominatar in calculating diluted earnings per share [A+B 38.80,26,000 38,81,33,711
Basic earnings per share)® 9 0.00 0.94
0.00 0.93

Diluted earnings per share)*

*EPS for FY 2022-23 is bepond two decimal poinl
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IrCred Prisme Flranss Liritind
fformerky becwn 8y IsCred Firancisd Servicer Limited])

Hates to Ehe Slanda'one Financisl Stitemesis
33 Finasnciad rivk manage—and

i Che Dot off 58 Bxaiingid, Ui Comparny is eaposed o certein firancial risks name Yy crécet rish, I=0ored rish, macket risk & Squedio; sk Tre Comgany's primary focus is to achane Belle predcrating
of firarcial markels i ieak 12 rinknoe potential sdvene effects on it Fnancal perforrance. The Francial risks are managed it scordance with the Company's risk macagemant golcy which Pas
B aporoved by ks Board of Dirwcters,

The Company’s Dodrd of Freciors Fas i all Fispore el 1y foe the ntebdshrent and oversght of B Company™s risk manapement Iimeasri. Tha Boar of drgctors Pad esLabisned the Risk
Maragerend Comrtiee, which s respons’ble for developing b svritering 1he Compamy's rish maragerment polces. The comendmie reserts rejularty b the baard of Srectors o iy acth s,

Tha Coenpany™s il marigimint palicad ks sitabihad b idert#y pod sna'yse the riaks faced by the Company, Bo 58t appropriate igk limes and sontral snd 18 maritsr rin a%d sdharance £ lims
otk Managemant pobcies and Sralems ark cisiiaed fagolicly 15 rifect changes in mirket corditon and the Company's activites.

A Credin Fidh

Credh risk ks the risk of financial koss 10 the Company if 3 CUSCorer of Ccourberparty 12 & frascual nslru=ars 1oy 1o maet it cortractaal obigations Le. receivables from oustomess, bvestments i debnt
sy tes efn Crecs rak anises from loans and sdvanoes, nvestments carried ol amaimized con aed desosity 0% Backs and Mitascal ratitaons,

1) Cr el wlak macapement
This Camrpacy biry ehjgctied & 1o maisten o firong ou'bere of resporaibie lerding, and robust risk poficles and coctrdl fremesorts, The Compacy coraidien varisui Tecton, ahich provife B0 195050t

of tha bar g’y o I8y-do-pay s wallingraia-to-pars, While the bechrigaes veed for assessment wary acrcss prochuct-segrends, B credd prisciplin rima roa gamiman fic s

Th kay Factory considered inchade:
- Inéeee and cash Bowr anabysly; The Borrower's incore for makiple sources s ssessed, slong with fhe borrower’s cbligations bod Prancisl commitmanti Hirde, U Tussly pvaflabld 12 ripay the
kTRl i compfed, 8 Ehe loan s Evlered 1o be affordatde o the barrower, For certain product Bypes workng capstal gag B 237 calouiated,

- Credid history srabysls The bosrower's esperence in macapng debt is conscered. Prior delinguendes avd coracered. & siroog fepapment irack record i trpsialy Bn ndicaned of Cha Ousto™ainrs
ailingress-to-pay, Enceptions and reances, Nie custora ry with o hmatesd crecit history bt aith strengihs e job-terare o gusef-pardinfip, ae abo coniaderid 16 miks bpge apr il cridin il

- Boroaer's profils and Interded use of the bunds; The Borrower's infended vae of Furds in cons'dered oo » part of the gredit procen, inchading tha caleuliten of woikirg captal opfla for sirtaln
product brpes, In some product-sepments, tha wie of funds moy b oot fod by the borrower or controfied by dabursng dinectly 83 15 end-uid, Barrower peoflis which are fof s tangeced marier:
MEErmeaty e soreened ot

- Sacurfty cower proviced: The Compary B § ol defined crisit pebcy which liys oot Ehe secur Sy 19 b prowided. In carlals cabis, Srowiding Uhe relevand colatinad B 3 o0 e-ond Uon 1or 10an sancton.

- Collactabilty pnd peo-location: . Tra barmower's keation, ssoeiabiimy, sLabdity kod contiat-ability rd o congidin e Balfore 007 GARCIoN. B Cieds whard Dard ad 30uban oF OOAIRRS 3l any of
shase Factors, ar pdverse sdpnimend 16 1ha fak-profile i made,

The Compary has separate date scence/bodbylcd e which mantes the wnlipe curve, bourcs rates, colliction affeecey, jotlota matred o delirguineiit Torthar pirtade rg-aod ol aelstrg
cusn o wnaprth delirguenay trereds and cred 1 larne g

Masiuremast of Dupected Credit Losie [ECL)

Thie Corngasy s sgmectid it utitieding portfolia Based on th risk profiles | 8. fsk manegerans golices, hrstorical espariences sith respect bo defadlt rates etc for the compeatation of ECL

& three-stage model for impalrmesit based on charges In oedt qualty since inital recogriton has been implemented. Tre Company has wed Daps Past Do [(DFE7) bass For staging of the portfalio and
Fas cpded for the rebuitable presamption prescribed by the strdard to recogrize defedt in tase payrmecds are everdae S0 doy ond o Sgraficert ircresse in Cred§ Bak |"HOR') n gone papmects ae
cverdue for mone than 30 days.

Thee ECL afasance s based on the credt losses engeched bo arine o the e of the asset [the Bt sxpactid red loanl unlaid thaprs Rk Baen A sigrdficart ncreiin in credat fak gince origioation,
b whech case, the alowance 5 based oo B 13 mont® s sopected crecht basi],

Lifetime ECL are e espected credit loases resdting draes all pessible defialt dvects oopr ik pxpacted e of a finarcial iratromint. Tra 13-maoeth ECL & th portion of Liftese ECL Dhal rigedsent
L1y that resalt From defra't maents o0 d firsacis! inslourseet Chat are ponis bl withan 19 10 monthe sfar O riportng dace.

Both Lifetime ECLy and B2-month BOLS Bre cefodlated o pithar an indwidal basds Jrolacth Bas, dapendirg on the nature of the widirlping porticlo of fraadal instrumares. Tre Comgany has
establsbed p poficy o perform ar asseramert, o8 e v of ach fepeaticg pecded, of whathar & Teancial Polroments o B30 nisebas ingrased sgn Boartly So0e it al ricagaTion, by considering the
change i the rish of defrdt aocurring over tha remarkag [Fe oF the Fnbecal instrumiect. The Compaty does the assesment of Sgficant ioraass n credtrish it o Beerowat level. Based on the above,
Ehe Compaty cHiegorees ks loans into Stege 1, $tege ¥ and Stage 1, Coraldering Bhe oorrent macro soonomid Biindre, dud 0o e o, Pha probabal by of defusies hive baen incraiiaed oeif a5d dbood 1
Pistorical rends soross prod st vertcals

OF0 Status | Stage RI o iroopiiel L EeL
| Loars e
Carrent Sage 1 12 Morch's ECL 12 Maonrs'y FCL
1-80 gy |4eage 1 13 Morth's ECL 13 Meaty's ECL
31-90 dap [_5»!-"1 Life Tirra ECL L T ECL
204 dagk g 3 Life T ECL iL¥8 Tt ECL

Trrther, the Company oo the bazis of &5 assenseaan oF crpd rish class T ks wvder Stage 2 respective of It Dver dues Shrtus durng The 2ericd, indluting loans under ooe- b resolution [DTR)
Tremewock prescribed by the Beserve Bank of oo (F3) for COMD- 10 rifated strsd. These aecooris are upgraded to Stage 1 as and whes thay demanseiane satsfactony bebasioor under the revised

regayrent schedue,
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Irlred Pelms Flaance Lisdoed
[Faemeryy ircwn oF Inred Frgacial Serdices Lismied)

Notes bo the Sasdalons Finarcial Statements
As af March 31, 3023

15 i kA 1
; Grass carrring et ehrrying |
Pantieulsrs Adiat group i [xpectied credit kaases :
Stage 1 Term Lasns £3.75 oo L]
e 3 Tvem Laami i = -
[5rage3 Term Loans R 1554 7530
s at March 31, 7032 i
R4 i ki)
Gross carmyiag Mt carnyng |
Partloulary .!.wﬂ Erosap 4 Espected oredit kosses |
Sraged Term Loans 3,29.540.00 245145 3,47075 58
Loar cormerErrends L& 288 30 942 18,308 8% |
He! Term Loans 2150145 13808 HT4IT
|Scnge 3 Term Lasns 10801 84 SA06 8 04 4T
Callatiral hatd

Tra Company periodcaly moritors the guaity 23 wel as the walie of the seourity bo meel the prescrbed Bts. The collafersf heid by the Coripity varss on Cad 0 Case Bads and ndades:

B FirsfSbsenbind charpe o0 the Land and'ss Bufiding af tre project o obrer projects

) FrshfSabservient charge on the Faed god currecd assets of the Socroaer

i} Hypatheat on toir recirvables from fusaled projict of cO'r o gpicts oF th Bed iowr

Be} Forst boss guarasiee default [FLDG) in Ehe Form of cash coflateral, len on fond deposts efc,

The Company measures the smssst of ECL or § Frseg sl iraSromant in o wiry that rpfiecti 88 wibiaied ird probatsltyweghead amosne. Tre Company considen (b kistercal lss esperience ard
acusts the samee for current chservable data. The key brputs inko the megsurement of ECL are the orobabilty of defest, loss pver dafe 1 ard fepaiung at difaul. Thase paramalers are Serived from
tha Campary™s wiimaly developed stabaticsl models and other historical dats. In pddson, the Comoany uses ressonsbie o d supperlible Wormation on [fure storomie corditons irdudng
rracrpeconami Tactars fuch il dirdoes, GOP, ricorded urimplipmest, growth rite, cuvinl Sicouet balance Me. Snce ircorponting these foreard looting nfarmation increases the fudgmact i 1o
o the changes In these macroscanoic Factor will aect 0L Ehe mathoddlogy aod auiumptions b fevivaed regulily,




nred Prime Finksce Limited
fermarky kograns an bdrpd Fngacial Services Limeted)

MioLes Lo the Standaors Finandial Satemaciti
(] Reesnciliatken of Loan éxpedars and Losn ke sfowance

For Loan enporune
Thee Bexlorw Eabile sigrefes movemerd of groas camy'ng amouns

R i lakra)

Regoneillation of Loan enpasure Sape 1 Stape 3 Stage §

Livaiy | o March 31 2031 2,31.5%3.00 T4 05 £ 506253
Change in opening (redt eiponre (1,28 612 06} {7,053 92} |LE2S B,
Mear Crechh eaposures drng the year, net of resayrent” 350 E5E 00 TASL T et
Trangferned to 13-manth [CL TO00 1 1157106 L
TeansTarnad 1 Lifetra FOL fd o impared (758055 rar M 13807
TransTarned 1o Lifetime ECL Cradst wmpaired 13,973 43| (3,380 37} 1.262.7%
Wite = offs ) E AL G
Loan & # on March 31, 3032 A,85.540 00 TLATLAS 141108
Tra~fer of Credd ecponore on pecceart of Derarger (3,85 743 28] 121,853 44] {10432.03;
Loan expasure &5 Aprl 01, 3021 THLIT Tiod 3759.33
Charg i if opaning O ad N Raodrs [krs-2d| 70 44] b Firin
bt CORTHT ERDOSUES during the year, ret of rezaywa . . -
Trans'emed W0 13-month ECL Qar @4 (0]
Traseferred fo Wfetime TOL rct oredt impaired - .
Tracaferred ta Lifetis BOL eredt impaired 1265) 18451 IE0
Wit = offs + . (]
Loan enpasure on March 31, 7013 [ o] 0.00 I
*represents cutrhanding balosce of foon eaposures originated durisg D prar oF 8F reparting J2ie
For Loan ks aliowrance;

|®s is whhs)
| Becorcliation of e aflowance Stagel Staged Staged
|Less allowarnce en March 31, 3021 LEES 67 100941 S AL
Charpe in opening, cred b esposure L2342 32 FEAETH) [EC X0
Mew cred s eaposares doring the year, ned of repayment® 15303.48 i7a.72 242006
Tracaferred o | 3-mont® FCL 34y (365 15 (1585
Trassfirred 1o Lifarirs ECL pol Cricit ivgaised 89404 25043 117047
Transfarrad o LifeCora ECL Credit ispaised 947} [{EERH 2R
ke - ofls - - |25 £
Lot allowance on March 11, 2022 T 45145 1.238.00 540689 |
Trarfer of Credit eoposure on goocsar® of Demerger |EAL5 EA) (1,213 24) {5, 2E2 AL
Loss alicrwance on Agril 01, 3032 1557 1524 184,05
Chings m epening EradiL Repos re 115 &3 117 4} 455
P COECRE R POSUrES Buring Ehe year, nal of Fesdyeder - - -
Transfemed 1o 12-manth ECL a1 0 36} AELC,
Translerced tg Lifetme (0L rof sredd ampared . . .
Tranglered 1o LiTerme ECL &radd impared ¥ [l ) F3k ] 1268
WnEE = o'l o - 5
|Loas sBcance on Masch 31, 2023 L) (e} 156,98

For brreestmaniy
|Rs. i lakka)
Ercorcilation of loss allowanct Seage 1 |
Loss allewance & March 31, W21 1317 |
Charges in koss atowarces due o Resets used of reltased tig
Loss albowance on March 30, 303 ¥ 528
Tra-'e on acccwnt of Demerper 225
Lows iflwince en March 31, B +
For lzan pomamitmenty
A, ' takba)
Reconciliation of kit allcwance | Stage 1
Lo allravascs en 38 March 301 1
Chargs i hoes alkowanoss dus o Risds uikd o Fdeinied |5
Lkt alloaarc o 30 March 2021 9
Trarfer on account of Demenger 1542}
Loss allowarce o0 31 March 2013 .

Offseining finaocial assets and financlal labdlives

*represeals outshending balkerce of loss 0Toworce on Jo0n Sapciures origineted cduting Bhe peor o5 of reporting date

SN

——

Treere are ro Fnaec's! sasets ard Firancly! Label tlas which ace sotiect to offsetting. erforceatle manter nettng arvengemenis ard Smlar jreemLrts

Iegiet of COVID-18

[A)1n aceorderce with the Basrd approved monborbe poloy read whhbike Beserve Bank of incha (R gubdelines duted 27 March 2030, 172008 2020 a0 23 May 2020 re‘ating to '0OVID12 Fepdanory
Pachage’, tra Company had pranted moriboriem up 18 bin morrhi o Che parpmend of mstaleencs which becawe dus Beraeen 1 March, 2030 and 3 Aok, 3000 5o oF el gble borowers. Ouring bhe
gurrent avd prev eul peir, Ehe Company bad provided foan mocatorism in respect of refsin loen soooards parpunct Bo BEry Pesobtion Framewort 10 daced Aoget B, 2000 and Resadmion Framrsork
70 dated Map 5 2021 for COVIOD-18 induced Siress. 85 a0 Barch 31, 2023 ard March 31, 2027, tre Comgany holfs a3equare imaairmant il owsrcs oo Ehe boan port®aia as per requreracts of Ind 8%
1%

[
18] Purpaast 4o b RES pirculie doted RoverrSar 13, 3001 - "Prodental Nami on lrceme Ricagrition, Lused dassficatior snd Paosistoning petrinng to &3wances — Clarificationd” ard review of the
Carmpany™s currint paboy fr maiioing eopected credt Iocanes a3 pir ind A5 tha Camdanmy had ol gned B8 deficition of defeu® e, Sage 10) wikh the aforesaid croular for asset daxsfoanion ard
Proisaing pearpond b g beed A5 ard the reaulacd irpact Fad been el ected in unaudited Soarerly Fing=co! resufts Tor the pirisd erded December 31, 3001, Howezver, on Febraary 15, 2022 B2 had
mged Forthar clacifispnios o thd gdid Groutar ard hid grp-Sed tme bl Sepdemar 30, X010 b0 MEFCH to imglémant the chige i defaull definton As 3 consegoerce, the Comoany has realgned the
dafintion of chasge o datintt b eaclar rocms, The Comaary will take necessary Vaps 5o gasusd sominrce with tha i,lr:»ilr-
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
[farmerly kncan os InCred Financial Services Limited)

Motes to the Stendalone Finandal Statements
30, Finarcial risk managemant [eontinaed)

€. Marketrisk

Barket risk or Irterest rate risk i5 the nsk that the Fair va'ue ‘o Tuture cash MNows of & finarcial instrument will Auectuate because of chinges in market sterest rates. The
Campany & esposed tointerest rabe risk through the impact of rate changes oninterest-besring Fablites and assats, The Company manages its intenast rate risk by mon'taring
the moverrenls in the market interest rates closely, The Company has Asset ard Uatilny Manzgement Committes (ALDO] ard has emoowered it to assess the interest rate risk
run by it and provede appropriate guidelires 1o the Treaiury to manage the risk. The ALCD reviews the interest rate risk on pericdc bats

Exposurs tointerest rate risk

Cnmpangfl irteredt rate fisk afised mi‘urhr fram barrawings, kard ard investments, Tha interest rate profile of the Compary's interest-bearicg finascisl instruments as
reparied to the maragement of the Campany is 28 folaws.

{Bs, In lakhs]
Neminal amount
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loans

Fixed rate loans 296 .65 22306375
Warisble rate loard - 1,58 146 89
Bark balance other thaa cath and cash equivalents - 1,951.35
Fined rate irvestments in debl secusities st armartised

st . B55.47
Fiwwd rate invastmants in debt securities at other

compretensie ircome x 2,809.12
Tutal 296.65 3,87.165.59
Debt and Borrawings

Fined rate Debt and Barrawings - 11,556,641 .85)
!\faria ole rate Debt and Borrowings - 10.20.500.62)
[Total . [2,78,147.48)

Falr vahue sensitivity analysis for fied-rate instruments

The Compary do€d rol accounl for ary Fiued-rate fnancial 255618 or financial Fabiities at feie value theough profin o loss. Therefone, @ change in interest rates at the
reparting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash Aow sensithity anabysis for varfable-rate Instruments

The sensitieity anafyses below have been determined based on the expoture to interest rates for assets and Rabfties at the end of the reporting pericd. Far floating rate
assets and liabitities, the anafysis is pregared assuming the amaunt of the liabifities/assets autstanding at the end of the reporticg perisd was outstanding for Lhe whofe year
and the rates are reset as per the applicable reset dates,

If intere st rates reated to loans ard borawings had been 100 bpy higher! bower and all other variables were beld constant, the Corpany’s Profit belore ta for the pear
erded Dahes Equity {ore-tach as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 would increase/ [decrease) bﬂh!-‘D‘.anin.i FMOUATS:

(3. in lakhs)

Partioufars Prafit or {Fass) Equity [before of tax]

100 bp Increase 100 bp decrease 1060 bp increase 100 bp detrease 1
March 31, 2013
Varlabia-rate instrumants - - - 3
LCarh flow sensithity [net) - - - ¥
Ktarch 31, 2032
Variabie-rate instruments 397.55 [397.55) 397,55 [ %97.55)
Cavh flaw sensithity [net) 397,55 [397.55) 391,55 [351.55)

The risk estimates provided assume a para’lel shoft of 100 basis points Interest rate across all yield curves. This caboulation a%o assemes that the chenge prours at the balance
sheet date and has been caloulated based on rish exposures outsianding as at that date, The pericd end balarces are rat necessasly representative of the average debt
autstarding during the period,

0. Orther Price risk
Tha Compary i not euposed te any other price risk,

E, Fare!gn Currancy Risk

The Company 5 exposed o fore@n ourrency fuctuation risk for is external currendy borrowing (ECH), The Company's Borrawngs in foreign urrercy are gowerned by R8I
gudeines (KRBl master direction ABYFED201E-19/67 dated 26 Manth 2009 and vpdated from timae to time] which requires entites raising ECB for an average maturity of 'ess
than 5 years to hedge minimum 706 of the its ECA exposare [Fradipal and Coupen). The Comparny hedges its entire ECB exposurg for the full tenure of the ECH a5 par Board
aporoved policy, The Compary Tor its ECB, evalaates the farelgn currency erxchange rates, terare of ECB ard its fully hedged costs, The Company manages its oarrancy risks by
entering inte derivatives contracts a5 hedge positions and the sama are beirg gowerned through the Board approved pofoy.




Irired Prirme Firance Limited
(formerky krowa o5 inCred Firosncia! Servicrs Limited])

Motes to the Stardalors Flasncisl Statemacei
31, Belated party dischisures

Ky managarial paricecal [TEueT)

| Name of the EMP Designation
M. Bhupireder Sngh Dirgcrod®

Wi, Wiveh Bansal DHrecror®®

bir, Gafercdra Thabur Company Seotatary Jupts Wiy 26, 3002)
Wirs, Buoa Bapul Yora I panciand Dirpoler

iy, Dabaskyah Dutts Gupda Iradeperaching Dirpcies Dopto Misch 30, 700 1)
Wi, Earnam Sekar Independand Directar®

Mr, Mriek Brand 7% Mon- Exputiee Directer [upto July 15, 2023
Wy, Eriski e Company Seoretiry (e e, July I8, POTT weta Decarsbar 1, 2002)
My Wk Vore Compary Secretary (o e £, Jaruary 0L, 7013)
hir, Sund Harlafa Wanager (m.ed. Decemoer 15, 2022)

Rr, Shaileah Kurar Chief Finarclal Clicer |w e f Juby 25, 2022}

*Designation of Mr. Exvopirdar Siagh chanped puriant to the Scheme of Arrangement referrod im Note 87 from Whaks-trs Dirioter iad CEO s Drscton

"1 Dewigration of Mr, Yook Bansa' cranged pursaant bo the Scheme of Arrargamand rafarrad is Kotk 47 from Whals-tina Dirsctor ard CFO to Girectar,
UMY, Krrem Sekar, independent Director of the Company resigned on Uy 26, 2002 ard wis Ferthar rrapasnied on Macch 31, 3013

Erterprises where key manageera st pereeseel enercises sipifcanst iefoesce

1, inred Molings Lireted [erstwhie ncwn as FXA Capetal Markes India Lisited) woe l by 36, 1002

2, rred Copetel Frraccial Services Frivate Limited

¥, inred ‘Weakh frivate Limited {Formerky knomr g InCred Capetad Inchision Baissey Privite Lereted)

&, IrCred Ausel Management Private Umited (Formery knoan a6 InCred Capenal Iastrant Advisan wod Managart Privite Limted]

5, inCred Capetsl Weath Portlolo Maragers Private Limeted {Formerty kocimn s BSH Conporats Advisars amd Cogitants Friopte Lisveed]
& Irred R arch bervces Frivate Limited [Formerly tnoem as Eamest inrowation Partrars Fricate Limined)

T inCred A praative Investments Private Limated

3 'nCred WiasTh s browrtrmeat Privete Limited

Felora subdaris:

E iTrad Firancidl Saevias Limded |entabils brown 9 K08 bedie Finprclel Services Limeted] woe f Juby 26, 3022
2. 1vCraed Maea et a0d Techedfogy Seraces Frivate Uimited woe F haty 26, 2002

3. Bocth Fisbeck Private Limited woe F july 26, 2002

A InCrad A Lirited won T oty 26, 3002

5. rivahs Techatapy Sirvices Frivate Limted woe Fiuly 26, 3001

A, Kavad of relited parties and niture of relitisnihip

Heddlng Coarpaery ] Ceamtry ol Froporikon of cwnendip inferest
'_ Incarparatien (% hedding]
A at Al
March 11, BT | March 31, 2033
Bee Finarce Lmsted |Mauritius), Heldirg Co. Baur R 000k 59 35%
Inired Hotdrngs Limeted sformer’y bnowr, as KA Capital Markets Put Ledy® Ir=dia 53.37TH 0.0

APursuant Bo Composine Schema of Avalgamotion and Arasgiment, Bok Flaoeos Lisvond bas bewn maaged inha LaEred Holfiegy Limeed
ferstwtade Kncwn o5 O Copita! Madies Fao Lnired] woef July 26 2627

Direct subskdiares:
Harmee of subisiclaries Tty of Priccipsl place of | Preponion of cwrarihia ntenest )
Incer paratin Eslrans (% hekdng)
i As at Ai
L March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023
reiiid Mirapered and Techrology Services Privete Limsed Wrda Murbal . 100 DR
Booth Frieck Private Lmitec Wda Mumbal . 100 DO
\rerad A Lirited Ik Wumbal . 100 D
rioont 16 LoTpahte mal et o g S Gries FarE Been Lrons rred [0 [Lred Financhoy Sereices Limeed [Ersintee

Lrirwn of KER lndig Fincogial Services Limited) wee f ity 26, 2002

Associate of Booth Fintech Private Usited (upls May 17, 2013)
Name of subsidaries Cewntry of Principal place of | Propoation of awradibip lrlerest

[ ' Ieetd s it L] As Rapt Y
March 31, 2028 ) Maech 3, 2022
m'daks Techroiogy Sendces Frivate Liritsd Irda Wirkal [ AT.35%]

Sty of Bosth Fintech Private Limited [w.e.l. May 18, 2022}
Nama of wubalclaries Country of Frincipal place of
Incor por athon [T

mials THrl'\lD'Ds_f Serdoes Private Larited Irdiz AMymhy

Mot i STMETOn I PRt of Corparitis paricd repeeiecd of relited paction of scitwbile IFSL oy recquired in o K5 10%

Transactions with key maragemant parsorasl

L Kty management peroee pomp n |Fa. in lakhs}
Parteralars E Ykt drdad March | Yias goded Masch

B, 2023 M, 2032 :
Errgliryee benefn eapenses 4008 69134
Girectary’ sitting Fees® .78 45 1%

# pnchoches oooruel for current yeor
s thee Haboitees for pratulty and shars Based payrrants are providid on setuarial bae's for the Comipany 55 2 ahole @vd hbsce Ehis amaunts prtaining 1o
thie kry managTant parsoredd ars rot rslodad i tha abave,
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InCred Prime Finanoe Limdted
(fermerdy known af inCnd Financipl Services Limited)

Motes to the Standslone Financial Statements

32, Employes benefitg

1. The Comaany has retognited the f&h'ﬁ"n; amgunts i Ehe Profit & Loss Account towasds contribations to priident Fuend and ather

furids:
[Rs. i lakhs)
Partioulars Year ended Year erded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2012
Prawident furd YT 37031

2. Gratulty

Every employee who will comrelete five yesrs of more of sendce gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days sa'ary [last drawn] for eath

corrgleted year of senvice, subect to ceibng of INA 20,00,000.

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit cbligation

{Rs. in lakhi}

T
Asat As 2t
Partioulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Change In banefit obligations
Present value of berefit obligation at the beginring of the year 31388 IS8 LB
Trarfer on account of Demerges |312.74) -
Interest (os - E.74
Current Serdoe oost 0.16 5378
Liztwliny Transferred InfAogastion -
Actuaral Loss [ (Galna] on Obigations - Due to Changa in Demographle Assumptions - (ooz]
Actuarial Loss / (Gaing] on Obfgations - Due to Charge in Financial Assumptions . (057]
Actuarial Losses on Oblgations - Due to Experience = 9544
Liakility at the end of the year 1.27 31385
Ameunt recognized in the Batance Sheet
[Rs. i lakhs]
Asat Agat
Partiulars i
March 31, 2023 March 11, 2002
Frasent value of benefit otligaton at the end of the yaar {1.27} 1313 &5)
Fair walse of plan assets at the end of the year
Furded Status [Deficith {127 1313 23]
Net [Liability]/Asset Recognited in the Balance Sheet {L.27} (313 85]
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
|Rs in lakhs)
i Year anded Tear ended
Partitulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current senvice cost n1s 5374
interest cost - 6.74
|Expentes recognised 0.6 E0.52
Expenses recognized in the Other comprehenshee income (OCI]
[R5 in II%hsJ
Year ended Year erded
Parthoutars
Miarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial Loss [/ [(Gaina) an obTgation for the year = ol E5
Het Loss f {Income) for the year recognited in OC1 - 04 B
The actuarial sigumpticas vied to detesming berefit abdigations 25 at March 30, 2023 and March 31, 2032 are a5 follcws:
Particulars Year ended Year erded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount Rate 1.0 55
Satary escalation rate 8,005 { B.00%
Expected Rate of return on Flan Assets NA | HA
Rate of Employee Turnawer 15% i IL%,
Weighted Average Duration of Projected Benefit Obligatian Sywars 5 years
Indian Assured Lives | Indian Assured Uhves

Mortality Rate during employmant

Mortaity {2012-14)

Miorta'ity (2012-14)




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{fermacly hrawn a3 InCred Finsneis Servizes Limited)

Motes ta the Standalone Financial Statements

The estimates of futwe salary increases, considered in 2ctuarial valuation, take 2ooours of infation, sesiarity, promaton and olher relevert

factord

Balance sheel recondilislion

I_ {Rs i latFah
Ag at Az at
Fareess March 31, 2023 Narch 31, 2022
Opening net Bability EYER-L] 158.48
Teanfer onacoount of Demerger {312.74) :
Exgenses recogniaed in Statement of Profit and Loss 0.16 G052
Experses recognaed in 001 E 0155
Het (Assel) Trarsfer in - -
Met liakdlity recognized in the Balante Sheet 1.25 31385
Cash Flaw Profection
Maturity anabysis of the banefit payments: from the amployer
i {Rs. in lakks)
. As at Asat
Fast } March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of repornting
1t following vear 0.03 53,12
2nd foliorwing year 0.22 158
Jrd following year 0,36 63,25
Ath following year 032 43 49
Sth following year 023 3675
Surm of years & to 10 0.44 B3 81
Surm of years 11 ard abave 0.0 1211
Sensithity anakysis
LRs in lakks)
As at Asal
parom March31,2023 | Mirch 31,2022 |
Prajected benefit obligation on current assumptions 1.35 31385
Delta effzct of +1% change in rate of discourting 10.04) [7.61)
[elta effect of -1% change inrate of 4 scounting 0.04 BG
[Delta effect of +1% change in rate of satary increcase 0,05 657
Belta effect of - 1% change inrate of sa'ary increase 10.08) [6.38)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of emplayee turnover 10.03) [3.85)
Drelta effect of -1% change in rate of employes tutraver 0.03 155

Qualitative disclosures

Gratuity 15 a defined banefit plan ard company s exposed to the Falawing Raks:

Imterest rate risk: & Fall in the dscount rate which is inked 1o the G Sec. Rate will indresse the present value of the hablity regairing higher

provishon.

Salary risk: The present va'ue of the defined benelit plan labidny is caloulated by reference to the future saaries of memban A5 such, an

increase in the saliry of the memders more than sssumad level will increase the plan's lability,

Asset Liabdinty Matching Risk: The plan faces the AL risk as to the matching cash Row. Company has (o manage pay-out bassd on pay as

you g basis Fram cwn funds,

Mortality risk: Since the bersfits under the plan is not payatde for Bfe time ard payable 1l retirement dge only, plan dees fot have any

lorgewiny risk.




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known os inCred Financial Services Limited)

MNotes to the Standalone Financial Stalements

33, Share-based payment arrangements
A, Description of share-based payment arrangements
I. Share option plans [equity-settied)

During the previous year the Company had Employee Incentive Plan under which options had baen granted to eligitle employees to be vested from time to time,

The Company has established share option plans that entitle the employeas of the Company and its subsidiasy companies to purchase the shares of the Company. Under
these plans, ho'ders of the vested options are entitled te purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares determined at the respective date of grant of options,

The kpy terms and conditions refated to the vesting of grants under these plans are continued employment with the company fram the date of grant of option vl the date
of vesting [25% each year); all options are to be settled by the delivary of shares,

A, Measurement of fair values

Equity-settled share-based payment arrangemants
The fair value of the employee share options has been maasured using Black-Scholes Option pricing model. The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the
measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment options granted during the year are as folows:

The model Inputs for options granted during

For the year For the year
Particubars f Grant date ended March 31,|ended March 31,
1 2023 2022

Fair value as on grant date {weighted average) NA|  24.91to42.17
Share prices during the year , on grant dates MA|  55.00to B5.00
Exercise price MNA 40,00
Expectad volalility (waighled average volatiity) NA 0%
Rate of Employes Turnover NA 35%
[Expected [ife lexpecied welghied average lie) WA B.5 years
Risk- frea Interest rate [based an gavernment bonds] WA] A89% to 6.B5%

Method wsed to determine expected volatility The expacted
wa|wolatility is based
or price velatility

B. Reconciliation of outstanding share options

Set out below s a summary of options gra nted under the plan:

! Number of options
B ieters Average exercise
price per option | As at March 31, | As at March 31,

i 2023 2022
Opening balane 3726 3,42,48,588 1,80,44,5938
Add: Options granted during the year HN& 1,88,51,500
Less: Options exercised during the year NA [43,678) [17,38.050)
Less: Opticns lapsed during the year MNA {9,0% 800
Less: Transfer on account of Demerger 13,42,04,912) -
Options outstanding as at the year end NA . 3,42,48,588
Option exercisable of the above NA& 1,20,35,181




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly knawa as InCred Financial Services Limited)

MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements
Il 5hare option plans {equity-settied) by Bee Finance Limited (Mauritius), Holding Company
On August 1, 2018, Bee Finance Limited [Mauritius), erstwhile Holding Company of the Company has estat@shed share option plans that entitle the employees of the

Company purchase the shares of the erstwhile Holding Company, Undar these plans, kolders of the vested options are entit'ed to purchase shares at the exercise price of
the shares determined at the respective date of grant of aptions.

The key terms and cenditions refated to the grants under these plans are continued employment with the cempany from the date of grant of option till the date of vesting ;
all oplions are to be settled by the delivery of shares,

a) Share options ksued by Bee Finance Limited {Mauritius)

A, Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the employee share options has been maasured using Black-Scho'es Option pricing maodel,

The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment options granted during the

previous year ara as follows:

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2023:
Ko fresh grants have been glven during the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2032

B, Reconciliation of outstanding share optians

Set out below is a summary af optons granted under the plam:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Average exercise]  Numberof  |Average exercisel  Number of
price per option | options price per option options
Opening balance - - a7, 718.27 241.00
FAdd: Options granted during the year - .
Less: Options lapsed during the year - - (47,728 27} |241.00)
Options autstanding as at the year end - . - -




InCrad Prime Finance Limited
(farmerly known o InCred Finonclal Senvices Limited)

MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements

34, Lease accounting

Tha Company has entered into leasing arrangements for premises. Right of Use Assets ("ROU") has been included under "Froperty,

Plant and Equipment” and Lease Liabitity has been induded under "0ther Financial Liabilities' in the Balance Shest.

i. Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assats (ROU):

Expansa relating to leases of low value sssels

(Rs. in lakhs)
Asat Az at
Particulars March 31,2023 |  March 31, 2022
Balante at the beginning of the year 1,850.B4 1,712.56
Additicn during the year - 552,35
Transler g¢n account of Demerger (1,830.84]
Disposals during the yiear . L
Deprecation for the year [414.04)
Balance as at the end of the year - 1,850.84
ii. The fallowing is the movement in lease labilities:
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,141.57 1,927.82
Add tien during the year - 552,36
Transfer on account of Demerger [2,141.57]
Finance cost accruad during the year . 158.413
Paymaent of Lease liabiities made during the year - (537.04)
Balance as at the end of the year 2,141,57
iii. The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:
(R, inlakhi}
Asal As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 |  March 31, 2022
Liss Uhan one year - 369.50
Between one and five years 1,674 34
More than five years av.7:
Total 2,141.56
iv. Expanses recognised in Lhe statement of Profit and Loss
{Rs. in lakhs)
Asat As at
Farticulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense an right-of-use assets |Refer Note B4) - 414.08
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 23} 198,43
Expense relating to short-term leases [Refer Mote 26)

10,51

The Company does rot face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the

ob’igations related to lease liabitities as and when they Tall due.

35. Contingent liabilities and commitments

[Fs. in lakhs)

Particulars Asat As at

B March 31, 2023 | March31, 2022
Commitments
Undrawn committed credit lines - 14,248.30
Obligation on investments in partly paid up preference shares - 181,81
Total - 14,430.11

There are no litigations and proceedings against the Company which raguices any provision or disclosure as contingent liability.
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
{farmerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements

37. Foreign currency transactions

(Rs. in lakhs)
if Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Expenditure in foreign currency
Directors' sitting fees - 9.20
Legal, professional and consultancy charges - 165,65
Information Technology expenses - 14.27
Miscellaneous expenses - 8.18
Interest on External Commercial Borrowings - 215.69
Total - 412,99

38, Corporate social responsibility

The Campany Demerged and transferred majority of assest to new IFSL. However since the company had profit
for the last 3 year the CSR liability is recarded in its books,
(Rs. in lakhs)
' Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars i
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013: 44,70 16.12
Amount spent during the year
(i) Canstruction/ acquisition of any asset -
{il) On purposes other than (i) above

Incash 43.43 16.35
Yet to be paid in cash : i
Total 43.43 16.35

Details related to spent obligations:

i) Contribution to Public Trust 43.43 -

i) Contribution to Charitable Trust - 11.68
ill) Covid vaccination other than employees and family members - 4.67
iv) Unspent amaount in relation to:

- Ongoing project = x

- Other than ongoing project 1.27 -
Total 44.70 16.35

39, Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

The Ministry of Micro, 5mall and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memerandum dated 26 August 2008
which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their carrespondence with its
customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Mumber as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Based en
the information available with the management, as at 31 March 2023, no dues were outstanding to micro and
small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further,
the Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act till 31 March 2023,

IR




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(farmerly known as InCred Financiol Services Limited)

MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements

40. Capital Management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business which includes
issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company.

As a NBFC, the RBI requires us to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio ("CRAR") cansisting of
Tier | and Tier Il capital of 15% of our aggregate risk weighted assets. Further, the total of our Tier |l capital cannot
exceed 100% of the Tier | capital at any point of time. The capital management process of the Company ensures to

maintain a healthy CRAR at all the times,

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order

to support its business and to maximise shareholder value,

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Asat fis ot
i March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Common Equity Tierl {CET1) capital 1,047.32 1,08,442 86
Other Tier 2 capital 0.02 2,461.45
Total capital 1,047.34 1,10,904.31

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings
including current year profit and loss. Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS-based results and reserves.

Refer Note 48 (2) for further details,

41. Ratio Analysis and its elements

o As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Ratio 2023 2022 % change
CRAR (%) 87.98% 28.05% 213.64%
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 87.98% 27.43% 220.75%
CRAR - Tier |l Capital (%) 0.00% 0.62% -99.74%

Liquidity Coverage Ratio*

Not Applicable

Mot Applicable

Not Applicable

*Not Applicable as the Company is o Non-Deposit taking NBFC with an asset size of less thon Rs. 5,000 Crore os

stipulated in the Master Directions.

CRAR : (Tier | Captital + Tier il Capital} / Total Risk Weighted Assets
CRAR - Tier | Capital : Tier | Capital / Total Risk Weighted Assets
CRAR - Tier If Capital : Tier Il Copital / Totaf Risk Weighted Assets




IreCred Prime Finarce Umited
[formerly known os InCred Finonciod Servioes Uinited))

Notes te the Standatone Firandial $tatemants

41. Compaiite fcheme of Arrangement:

The Boacd of Divectors of the Company a7 their rawting held oo September 3, 2021, had approved the Compasite Scheme of Atangement (the “Scheme’] with
KRR Cagite Markets Inda Private Limited, Bo# Fingnce Lieied, nCred Prime Finance Limited |‘ormarly baean i "InCred Firarclal Seovices Lmited and the
Company) ard the same was fted with varicus regutatory suthosities snd National Company Law Tribunal,

Trie WOLT passied the final order dated May B, 2022 , Tha Schime wis made effective by the Board of Directors of the Company, InCrod Prime Finance Limted
ard KXR Capite’ Markels Limited at their meetings he'd on July 36, 2022 ard the relevant filing were done with the Registrar of Comparies, Mumbai on buly 26,
0,

Tr Appodnted dite of the Scheme i Apal 1, 2022, and accordngly the beobs of socunt brd finarcial resuts eflecting the Scheme have been prepared with
effect from Apeil 1, 2002,

Unider the Schama, tha identfied NBFC buainess of 1vCred Prime Finance Limited (Tormary, I=Crad Firgacisl Sendoes Limited) {"ertwhile IFSL°) shall ba darmesged
with InCred Firancial Services Limted (formerly, KOR india Financial Services Uimited] ['reew IFSU) AR poe the erma al the Scheme, the Board of Dirscton of
erstwhile InCred Financial Servces Limited hive been sopoiated o the drectors of the rava IFSL constituting majodity. Further, with tre discharge of purchase
conyderation for demergar, the shareholders of erstatile IFSL will hold magoriy shareboiding of the raw FSL

A5 par the Seheme, the remalring NEFC butiness [Le aRer eaciuding dendified MEFC Busiress demerged under the Scherme) shal fontisue o b2 carried oot by
entahile FEL Aroordnghy, tve net sisets of R 1,077.31 laths pertaining to the remalning M2FC Busiress will conle Lo remaln nthe aistwhia IF5L,

Particulars I8 I fakhs 1NR i laichs
(1) Aspats
Loard 1,01358
CAMer assels 2311371
(i} LlabTigias
Barrawings (Ocher thes Deba Segurities) 1, 00000
Caber Gabiltins 1169398
[Hat Basats retalned (i) : 1,077.31]




InCred Prime Finance Limited
(fermerly known as InCred Financizl Services Limited)
MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements

43 .Other Statutory Infarmation

During the current year and previous year:
{ij The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami praperty.
{ii} The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
{iii)
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory peried.
{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.
(v} The quarterly statement of current assets submitted to banks / financial institutions which are provided as security
against the borrowings are in agreement with the boaks of accounts,
{vi) Funding Transactions:

{vi) {a) On 20 Septembear 2021, the Board of Directors had approved investment in equity for an aggregate amount of upto As.
999.87 lakhs in Booth Fintech Private Limited ("BFPL") (a wholly ewned subsidiary of the Company). Subsequently, BFPL
subscribed to 17,240 equity shares of mValu Technology Services Private Limited {an Associate Company of BFPL) on 20
September 2021 at a price of Rs, 5,797 (including premium of Rs, 5,787) per share aggregating to Rs. 999.40 lakhs, The
transactions are in compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and are not violative of the
Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 {15 of 2003). Further the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act,
19499 (42 of 1999) are not applicable to the transactions.

{vi)(b) Except as disclosed above, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or atherwise)
that the Intermediary shall ;

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the campany (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{1} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beaeficiaries

[wil) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including fareign entities {Funding Party) with
the understanding {(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
{1} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party [Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

() provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
{will) The Compary have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or

any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
{ix) There are no scheme of arrangements which have been filed by the Company under the Act and which have been

approved by the competent authority ufs 232 to 237 of the Act. For details of Scheme of arrangement filed by the
Company with NCLT refer Mote no 41,

{»} The Company, being a Nen-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC") registered with the Reserve Bank af India as a
systematically important NBFC, the provisions of sec 2(87) read with Companigs (Restriction an number of Layers) Rules,
2017 are nat applicable,

{xi] The Company has not been declarad as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

{xii] The Company has not revalued any property plant and equipment and intangible assets,
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
{farmerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes te the Standalone Financlal Statements

46. Additional disclosures required by Reserve Bank of India ('REI’)

1

Fraud reported during the year
The Company has reported frauds aggregating Rs. Nil (previous year: Rs. NIL ) based on management reporting to rsk committee and

to the RBI through prescribed returns FMR-1.

Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
The ratios calculated in accordance with the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India, are as under:

Particulars ol e
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
i) CRAR (%) B7.98% 2B.05%
i) CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) B7.98% 27.43%
iii] CRAR - Tier Il Capital (54) 0.00% 0.62%
iv]  Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-|| capital - -
v} Amount raised by issue of Parpetual Debt Instruments - .
vi)  Risk weighted asset 1,150.44 3,95,365.69




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formedny known os inCred Financlal $ervices Limited)

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements

3 Investments

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars edd: £ 8
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
{1) Value of investments
(i) Gross value of investments
{a} In India 8,688 .81
{b) Qutside India g
(i) Provisions for depreciation
{a] In India 928
(b} Outside India & -
(i) Met value of investments
(a) In India 867954
{b) Qutside India =
(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
i) Openirg balance 9,28 1317
(i} Add : Provisions made during the year - 9.28
(i) Less : Write-offf(write-back |of excess pravisions during the year [0.28) {13.1%)
{iv) Cilosing balance - 928
4 Derivatives
(a) Forward rate agreementfinterest rate swap
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars XL Asat
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(i} The notianal principal of swap agresments . 5,100.00
{ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations unde:
the agreements A%ndl
{iii) Collateral required by the applicable NEFC upon entering into swaps
(iv] Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps - -
[v} The fair value of the swap book - 29922
*The Company has hedged its foreign currency Borrawings through CORE [cross currency (nterest rote swops). for Awcounting Polcy & Risk Management
Palicy. (Refer note no. 1 ond 3
[b) Exchange traded interest rate derivatives
The Company has not traded in exchange traded Interest rate derivative during the current and previous year.
{e] Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives
Qualitative disclosure
Details for gualitative disclosure are part of accounting policy as per financial statements, [Refer note no. 1 and 30)
Quantitative disclosure
Particulars St As ot
i March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(1) Derivatives {notional principal amount) far hedging - 5,100.00
(i} Marked to market positions
[a) Asset 299,22
[b] Liability ‘
{iil} Credit exposure 299,22
{iv) Unhedged exposures -
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InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known o InCred Financial Services Limited)

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements
5 Disclosures relating to securltisation
(a) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation f Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction - NIL (PY: NIL)
{b) Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RB)/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04,048/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021

1] Details of transfer through co-lending in respect of loans not in default during the the year ended March 31, 2023
{Rs. in fakhs)

A OIarE Year ended Year ended
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
i} |Amount of Loan accounts assigned 0.0 208500
i) |Retention of Beneficial Economic Interest (in®) 0.00 68.01%
i) |Welghted Average Maturity {in Years) 0,00 10,75
iv) [Weighted Average Holding Period (in Years) HA HA
v] [Coverage of tangible security Caverage (in%) HA Ma,

The above transaction is pursuant to Co-lending option || {Direct Assignment) pursuant to REl notification AR Z020-
21/63/FIDD.COPlan.BC N 8/04.09.01/2020-21

1)'Details of overdue loans [NPA and SMA) transferred during the year ended March 31, 2023: Nil

11} Details of overdue loans (NPA and SMA) transferred during previous year ended March 31, 2022

The Company has sald its existing business of Direct Sourced Two-Wheeler Loans comgrising of foan portfolio amounting to Rs. 2,085.87 lakhs
for Rs, 1,040.00 lakhs effective October 01, 2021, The sale has resulted in a gross loss of Rs. 1,045.87 lakhs with a correspending release of loan
provision amounting to As, 481.67 lakhs, thus resuiting in a net charge of Rs.564.20 lakh; for the quarter.

Details of overdue loans [NPA and SMA) transferred during the previous year:

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars To permitted transferees

MNo of Accounts _ 5,417.00
Agpregate principal outstanding of leans transferred 1481227
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred <1 year
MNet book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) 03638
Aggregate cansideration il 48572
Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years -




IE'BZE'S Br'SOE'S I9°ET ELTT sanpgen Aouaung i
:: A o * = - - - spaier Aavaun uiasog
T ESE ALE = vEOva'as EFOre'eE’T GIYEL'TS TET88'91 GE'GEL'YT SORLTY ALILTET sdumolsog
E5'6L9°E DO°STEY ] q1995 LPIGE SO0ZYE TH6IT LIt DT°SET LTI LR
IFITTELE Sy'Erlo9 SLTL9'SE HES90°E0°T PE'LbE'SS SEEZS6E T e BIGIERT ELBET'AT SOIUBADY
= - = - - o - = - sysodag
s i sieak 5 oy CsaERA g deak T oy dn spuow g ordn [ syuow g o SYIUDWE O}
vt HERSINO | g sumak £ 43n0, |00 dn g eak 74300 7 sqIOW 9 1900 % syuow £ 390 | dn sipuow 7 sano | dn yuow paang | S FE/0E AN sieronied|
(FUse] W sy) . CZ0E "TE 42BN 1B ST S3[IHIGE|] PUE SI355E JO SLUSY) UpELIad Jo widled ALUniew Juswadeusi ALjjge)| 1255y
[ooo o0'd oo'd e Adwanny uikaiog
- - = 518550 AJualund ufiaie
sEUIADLIDY
i - = = = SILDLLITS A
EDSPT Ft- ] el LE°6 L1'9T E99T SILEAPY
. £ - = - & . susodag
fieah g o3 ieald g JEaA T og dn Syluow g o dn SYIUGW £ 03 SAUOW T 01
it S dn g sawak £ JaAg oy dn g Jeak T Jan0 | B syuowWw glang | g oW £aang | dn sijuc 7 Jsag | dn giuow T Jang Shep re/0c s dn o e
(supeg o) ETOT "TE Y2TIAL 3T SE Sa00[15en) pue $33550 30 5w WIELDD 40 widlied Aungew Juawadruew ANigel| 1assy g

SIUMLDILIS [BIDUELIY JUO[EPUEIS ST 0 530N

{PITLLTT] SINALFS (OUOUT PaiIU} TO LMoY Auauco/)

PAULWI SIUTUL WL PRI



InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as InCred Fingnciol Services Limited)

Notes lo the Standalone Finandial Statements

7

Exposure o real estate seclor

[Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars. As at As at
3 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Direct Expoiure e,
Residential Martgages -
il Lending fully secured by morgages on residential property that is or wil be oocupied by the A5 3%
berrower or that s rented
Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by martgages on commercial real estates {affice buildings, retail space, mu'ti-
allit PUrpDse cufnmerr_iar premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial 5509811
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land aoquisition, development and
construction, etc ). Exposure would alsa indude non-fund based fimits
frvestments in Mortgage Backed Securities MES) and other securitived exposures -
aljid]  |a. Residential
b. Commercial Real Estate
Indirect Expasure
Fund based ard non based exposures on National housing Bank and Housing Finence
Companies
Exposure to capital markel
|Rs. in lakhs)
HAsat Asat
Fatetn March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[} [mirect investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debantures and wnds of
equity-oriented mutuzal funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate gzot: 4,8724,22
{1l |Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis to indiiduals
far irvestment in shares [Ineleding IPOS/ESOPs|, convertible bonds, convertibla debentures,
and wnits of equity-oriented mutual funds;
(i) [Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bands or convertble debentures
of units of equity orented mutcal funds are taken as primary security;
[t |Acvances far any other purpases to the extent secured by the eallateral security of shares or
condertinie bonds or convertinle debentures or units of equity oriented mutual fund: ie.
where the primary security other than sharesfconvestible bonds/convert ble debentures/urvts
of equity orieated mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances; - -
fv] |Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and gusrantess issued on behad of
stockbrokers and market makers;
[vi) |Loans sancteoned to corporates against the security of shares/bonds/debentures or atker
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's centribution to the equity of rew
tormpanies in anticipation of raificg resources;
iwiip  |Bridge loans to companies againit expected equity flowsfissues;
fe) Al exposures bo Venture Capital Funds (bath registered and unregistered) .
Total exposure to capital market - 4,924.22

8 Detalls of financing of parent company products - Kot Applicabite {PY: Not Applicabie)

9 Details of Single Borrower Limit {SGL) f Group Borrower Limit (GBL) excesded by the NBFC
The Corrpany has not exceeded the predential exposura limits for Single Borrower Limit ($GL) / Group Borrgwer Limit (GBL) In the current year and previous

10

yaar.

Unsecured advances
The Campany has not granted unsecured 2dvances against col ateral of intang ble securities sush as charge over the rights, lcenses, authonity. For detaits of
unsecured advances, refer nate 5




InCred Prime Flnance Uimdted
{formerly known of InCred Finoncio! Services Limited)

FMates fo the Standalore Finardclal Statements
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Miscellineous

Registration chtalned from other financial sector regutatons

Pasticulars [Reg. Murdar
R Regitrpton Narber (00R) 8:-13.02355
Carporate ldeatifenion numbser (CIN] UTARSEMIFILFLCIL0N12

Drsclasiure of Penalties irpased by BB ard other regatators: ML (FT.RL)

Related Party Trarsactions

Feter Note 31 to tha Fanandia? s1atemenls for the trensaction with the refated partiss.

Cred® rating
I Asat Asat o
e . March 31, 2023 Marh3lonr |
Long term bark faciltias WA CRISL & JCARE A
(Under Credit watch wan Pasitse
implication|
Ercured Non-Convertble Debardurg Iy CRESIL & FCARE &
iUreder Credit watch with Posdne
)
Lecured Non-Lonverible Ceberiure (Pubic A CRISIL & [Under Crecet watch ath
LR Fasithe Implication)
Sacuned Markst Uinked Debentures Fiby CRISL PP - WLD Ar
CARE FP-MUD A
[Uraer Coedit wloh with Post 4
Implkcation)
CRISA FF -MALD Aker (CE} Stable
Short e bank Tacilities M &
Comumercial Paper H& CRISL &1 {Urder Credit watch
with Pasitive implication]
Additional dckaiuce
Proisions and contingentien
[Rs. in laia
Break up of Provislens and ¢ endes’
MMIhmue-nmhmm ! Jan e eaLe
e TN wers it March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Proeisions for depreclathon on bmvestrant % 1354
Provis'on tawards NPAS Write ol 241 3,78500
Pronisiacen iade Tormards indorme Lin .- 1,705 41
Prorvision for Standerd Assets 131.42) 185 14)
Draw down from reserves.
During the year, the Company has not draan doom any amourt from Reserves.
Contentration of Advantes, Dapasures and NFAS
Contantration al advardes
(R b Gt}
+ Az at Ad ot
Fartans March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tate! advances to taenty largest Borrowars 18741 26,1823
Percentage of advances to taenty largest
Borrawers to total advances of the NBFC SEALH EAE%
Corcentration of exposures
|Es. in %)
o As at At
el March 31, 2013 Masch 31, 2012
Tedal eapasure 1o twenty argest
bt oraersfoustormers 15741 I6AET 43
Perrentege of exposures fo taenty largest
beromersfoustorers 1o total eaposure of the
WAFC on bornow ersfoustomers 55.44% b
Irtragroup Exposures
Compary does rat have 30y Wtragroap EXposare,
Comentration of KPAS
[Fis. in lathy)
Particutars Az at As at
March 31, 2023 March3l, o2z~ |
Tatal gapsure £ Lo Teedr NPA pecounls 5304 204087




InCred Finaneial Sendees Umited

(fermerly Enawn o €68 indlo Financiol Sendoes Limited)

Mates to the Standalone Financial Statemants

le) W] Sector-wise exposure and NPAS

(R Ir Bakhsp

As at March 31, 3023 As at March 31, 2022
& Total Exposure (includes] % Cross NP ta ] 1Ly Jotal Exposure % Gross NPAS to
! EHLHANTE Libek i o HPAs | total in Uinehid ek of) busnte Gross NPAS total exposure in
ofl-balance sheet iy FEPERUTEE | heet and off-balance AE
that sector that sector
expoiure) sheel exposura)
[L Bank Credit (il + i) 332.04 16214 76.99% 3,96,572.15 1081136 273%
L Food Credit 5 T 5 : X z
I Hen-food Credit 3.4 161,28 TEB.93% 1,96,572,15 10,811.36 273N
1. Agriculture and Allied Activities - 0.00% ,504.07 418,15 14.481%
2, Industry (Micro and Small, Medium and
[Large) - 0.00% 206.27 350 3.29%
2.1. Micro and Small 0.00% 106.27 50 119
2.2 Medium = 0.00% 100,00 . [N
2.3, Larga g 2 0.00% . . 00,007
1. Bervices 132.04 26128 TGN 1,81,752.06 581628 3758
3.1. Transport Oparalons . < 000 357,24 . 0,00k
3.2, Computer Softaare 000 43 87 . 0.0
3.3. Tourem, Hotels and Restaurants 0005, B,245.17 1508 247%
3.4_5Snipphg 000% ) . .
345 Avaton : i 3 : ? f
3.6, Professcnal Services 11.48 11,48 106 D% 3,631.50 40,23 1.11%
3.7. Trada 301,53 237,03 TB 35K 44, 550,54 12063 16¢%
3.7, Wholazale Trade [other than food
Precurement) - . L 17,916.58 55.09 0.31%
3.7.2. Rewsl Trade 30153 23703 TBILH 26,671,565 BG5S 54 2.50%
3.8, Commercial Real Exlala ; b 0.0 2 . 2
3.9, Hon-Banirg Firandal Companks
(MBFCs) of which, 0.0 52,635.52 1.93 0.0
3.8.1. Housing Finance Gompanes (HFGS) 0.00% 1,507 81 . 0.00%
3.9.2. Fubic Firancal institutns (PFIs) - . . . . -
3.10. Cher Services” 1&.02 1377 76448 74,281.322 5.521.83 7438
4, Personal Loans 0.00% 1 11.655,76 357264 1E5%
4.1, Consumer Durables i . :
4.2, Housing (Inchuding Priodity Saclor
Housrg) 0.00% 40704 95,70 13.46%
4.3, Advances ejainst Flaed Deposis q B = 0.00%
4.4, Advances 1o Individua’s aganst share,
bonds, elo, 5
4.5, Credil Card Oulstanding - - - -
4.8, Education I s | 0.00% 6087292 £0.05 0.07%
47 Vehics Loans — - 0,000 3,753,112 0,50 0.08%
4.8, Leans aganst god jewelany - 0.007% . - .
4.9, Crher Pergonal Loans 0.00% 146,630,799 343639 2,348

* Other Servites includeé sevvices which are nol indioted elisatere.




InCred Prime Finance Limited

{(farmerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

MWotes to the Standalone Financial Statements

13  Movement of NPAs

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i} |Net NPAs to net advances (%) 51.92% 1.43%
lii) 1Mwement of NPAs [Gross)
{a) Opening balance 10,811.36 9,036.67
{b) Other adjustments (10,432.03) 15.86
{c) Additions during the year 3.80 7,756.89
{d) Reductions during the year 120.84 5,998.06
|e) Closing balance 262.28 10,811.36
{iii) |Movement of Net NPAs
[a) Opening balance 5,404.46 4,424.55
[b) Other adjustments {5,209.19) (601.83)
[b) Additions during the year 5.85 4,339.27
[c) Reductions during the year 125.80 2,757.53
(d} Clesing balance 7531 5,404.46
(iv) [Movement of provisions for NPAs
{a) Opening balance 5,406.90 4,612.12
(b} Other adjustments 15,222.84) 617.69
() Provisions made during the year (2.05) 3,417.62
(d) Write-off of excess provisions (4.96) 3,240.53
(e} Closing balance 186.97 5.406.90

14 Owverseas Assels (For those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries Abroad)

The Company does not have any joint ventures or subsidiaries abroad, hence not applicable.

In accordance with Master Direction Master Direction DNBR, PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 Master Direction -
Nan-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016, the Company has not lent against gold jewellery during the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022:NIL)




InCred Financial Services Limited

{formerly known as KKR indiag Financial Services Limited)

Motes lo the Standalone Financial Statemeants

16

Customer Complaints

|Rs. in lakhs)

SrNo

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

5'

51

5.2

53

-]

Compliants received by the NBFC from s customers

Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
Number of complaints received during the year

Number of complaints disposed during the year

Of which, number of compliants rejected by the NBFC

Nurnber of complainis pending at the end of the year
Kaintainable complaints received by the NBFC from the Cffice
of Ombudsman

Number of compla‘nes received by the NBFC from Office of Ombd
Of 5, number of camplaints resohed In favour of the MBFC by
Office of Ombudsman

Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/
mediation/ advisories lssued by Office of Ombudsman

Of 5, nurmber of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by
th Office of O@mbudsman against the NEFC

Humber of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time

[other than those zppealed)

&
710
2,707

10

10

*Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Freviously
The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018) and coverad within the ambit of the 5chame.

Top five grounds of complaints received by the NEFCs from customers

Number of % Increasef decrease in Of 5, number of
Grounds of complaints, |complaints pending the numter of Number of complaints comptaints
(i.e. complaints relating |at the beginning of  |Number of complaints received during |complaints received  |pending at the end of  |pending beyond
ta) the year the year over the previous year |the year 30 days
1 z H 3 4 5 ]
= For the year ended March 31, 2023
Collections related 5 HA
Bureau Helated 2 __HA
Total ) 7 HA
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Callections Related =) 1,714 195.52% 2
Disbursal lssue 316 100.00%
Mobile App Related 244 45, 24%
Faedback On Sales 3 17 520.00% 4
EMI Related - 162 -63.43%
Others 1 57 > -24.00% 1
Tolal 2,710 108.30% 7




I5Crid Prisek Findnce Limited
{fermerly inoam a3 \nlred Financla! Senaces Lisvted)

Botes bo tha Standuloes Flasrsisl St emanty
17, Schedule do the Balance Sheet as per Master Difecliens

& Loam B Advarmes awated by the Non-Banking Firaneial company industre of interest agoreed tharesn but not pald:

s, & laichs)
5. Na P i '.: B at LIT ]
r March 35, 7033 March 31, 2023
Mursund At
JUy  fLiataleie gide ; ertitanding Amcunloverdue | ovtitarding Amaunt crverde |
Lowai gred advarces ovafed by the NBFC Inchadee of latedail asirued
Eharean Bt ned pakd;
(0] Debarrfyres®
= Geouned = - S5 683.00 -
= Unsecuried g - = -
| %) CPiereed Crasieg = & = 2
€] Trim Laisa - - 165178 =
| Irter-corporate kaers ard borrowing - E 4 55000 .
| &) Covmrercia? Paper . . 102D TT .
| Putilic Depemits . - . =
|k Ochar Logms - - 8123.71 -
"othar thas fallirg within the meaning of publc deposits
(3] [Aidets shcde o
Break-up of ki and advances incleding Bl recetvabies:
(8] Secured - oo 1.59,160.27 300033
(b} Unsecured 33200 F1LE4 2116048 4 500 38
b Breakup of Leased Assets ard stock on hire and athas assats tounting towsrds ssset Francing acthvites
(Rs. in laichs)
Fastiout Asat B3 at
el t March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2002
i} [Lease assets inciuding lease rentals under sunsny debaors:
|a) Finandial lease G O
%] Dparating lesie 3 :
Gy | Sreech o hing including kise charnges urder sundry delitors:
[} Basets o Firg . -
|&] Pepossessed Aysaty . -

{in) | Other boans counting towards AFC activities:
|a) Leans where assets Fave been repossessed : =
|6 Loaers cahar than (o] abowe z : =

€ Braakup ol irwesbmanti;

{Ra. i lakha]
A at Az al
¥, Mo, Partioalars |
1 Mlarch 31, 7023 | Margh 31, 2012
Carnent irvestmants ;
1 Gt

(i) Bhares : (2] [onity : .
2] Preference . .
() Debenture ard Bonds . )
[} Uit of mwrtaal funds a =
[} G rTarnt EeCur TS - -
[« Cthars 7 s
I Urpaied
16 Shares: (o) Dty = N
(t] Preference - s
| &) Dadmentoras ared boreds - 2EFETY
] Urits of Fafical Buncts - -
|Fv] Gerwr fir et Setur ki - -
|v} Others - BES 44

Wons urrent invwestments:
1| Oucted:

il Sraras : {a) Equty - -
[6) Prafarence 7 i
i) Debatr gy pod bords -
§i1) Urats of mwtusl fords -

() Government secastes " . .
v Cnbars - £
2 |Ureplaed
1) Shgres; (8] Egaty - L]
(b Prefeerce - 9.22

() Debentures and bonds . .
[} Urits of mvotaal funds - -
[} Gaveereradnl souritay T 2
['w) Gnhary * =




WrCrad Prime Findnte Uimited
[Farmmérty birram i inlred Fingromsl Services Limaid)

Mofes bo the $andalore Financlad Stat ]

4 Borroedr provpowlin clidificetion of assets, Financed as in (3] and (1) abave

\Fs, i Bhs)
Ax ot
e At March 31, 2023
Arrgant [Nk of provisions
Sowed Unsecured | Toul
L. Falated Partis
L2} Sbiicarian & . O
1) Cer=alirias in bhe same group - o -
(] Qeher related partes . 2 .
2 Oter than re'ated parties [ 145,03 145.03
Total - 145058 1503
(R8s, in labb}
Azt
Sr. Mo Cm-mn_. ! ek 1 s
Muresnund (et of provisions)
Secured Urserured Totd®
1. Flabed Paried
() Subsidarien - - -
] Ca=panias in tha seme group - - -
6] Crtteer related parties - . -
2 Other than related parties 15842891 2,17,801.72 3,73, 12642
Toks 1.55414.71 LT ECH.72 3,73, 1642
& lrvesbos group-wing danification of all imeestments [oarrent ard long berm] in shares and securities [both quated snd unguated]:
183 i lakka)
As at Aa gt
Hy iR Loy March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Warked Vihue [ | Book Valon (Mot | Mackat Valoe [ | Boch Value [Net
Brinak iy e Falr af Prorviskana) | Boesh wp orFale | ol Provislions)
walkoh of HAY vilue or KAV |
1, Eeated Partes
(1] Swbsidiaries = . £51%.00 451500
(b Companies in the same group - . . .
e Otheer related pamiss . . . a
B, Ccher than ralated partss i 0 = 37181 A, FEL 5]
Tatil 5 - - 568 R BETEAY
T Other nformation
(B, i lakchs)
A ot As at

&r, o, Particalars
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 7022

{11 Gross non-perlorming aksets

{a) Fotatad pasties . .
=) Dakar than related parties IE1.28 10.,E10.38
Ry | Mk Fer-perforrrr g aasets
[#) Palaied partas - -
{4 Geher than related partes 7501 S04 44

1) | Assess acguined in satistection of deke




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

18. Disclosure as per RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4th November, 2019 -
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

(Rs. in lakhs)

Number of Significant

sr. No. Amount % of Total Deposits | % of Total liabilities
Counterparties
1 MA 0.00 MNA NA
Top 20 large deposits : NA
Top 10 Borrowings
(Rs. in lakhs)
Amount % of Total borrowings
0.00 MNA
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
(Rs. in lakhs)
5r. No. Name of Instrument Amount % of Total liabilities
1 Term Loan 0.00|NA
2 Market Linked Debentures 0.00|NA
3 Non Convertible Debentures 0.00|fA
4  |Commercial paper 0.00]NA
5 Cash Credit /f WCDL 0.00{NA
6 External Commercial Borrowings 0.00|NA
7  |inter Corporate borrowings 0.00|NA

Stock Ratios

Sr. No. Name of Instrument % of Total public funds | % of Total Liabilities | % of Total Assets
a Commercial paper MA MNA NA
MNon-convertible debentures
b |[Original maturity of less than 1
year} NA N NA
¢ |Other short term liabilities NA NA MNA




InCred Prime Finance Limited
[formerly known as inCred Financiol Seceices Limited)

Rotes to the Standalone Finandal Statements

19, Restrucluiing of Loans

R, in bakhs]
Type of Restructuring Others
5 Asset Classification
Ko, Detalls Standerd | Sub-standard | Doubtful | Loss Total
1|Restructired Accounts as on April 1, 2022 Mo, of bosrewers a5 00 172800 : . 1B2I00
0. Amount outstanding | -10,117 32 1524.73 . - 11,643 D6
Frowlslon thereon AFRO5 BA3 65 . . LT
2 Fresh Restruciuring during the year # Mo, of borsorwers & B 5, i i
= Amaunt cutstanding . 2 T 2 1
Frowlslon thereon . - . . .
3 Uﬂjfida'l-iﬂﬂi to restructured standard category during the Fy® Ho. of borrawers G5 00 21,1280 = = 2,82300
Amaunt outstanding 10,1:7.32 1524.73 - - 11,642 05
Proveision therean Aun 05 BADES . . 1,274.71
Restructured Sandard Advances which eease to attract kigher pravisioning
ardf or additional risk walght at the end of the F¥ and hence need not be
A|shawn as restructured standard advances st the beginning of the nest FY Wa. of borrowers i . F: 2 i
Amaunt gulstanding - - - - -
Proweision therean . 4 o : -
5| Dawn gradations of restructured accounts dusing the Fy Ma. of borrowers B o R 2 =
Amount autstanding - - - - -
Provision theraan - - - - -
& | Write-offs of restrustured accounts dusing the FY Mo, of barrowars - - - - -
fmount outstanding - - - - -
Provisian thereon - - - - -
7 |Restruacturad Accounts as on March 31, 2023 Ma, of barrowers . “ . = .
Amount outstanding - - - - -
Prowvisian thereon - - . . .

*Cases an craafened on occoual of Divsarger

Thare gof ra fanfi Seifratfured o0 poipwnb of COR meckoniam o SAME ceb resfrscfuring in the rurrend pear oo previous peor.

The Company hal ceaind asee? chassifcoton Beaifit vadir REC Netffoston RECIDIE-1R/100 DER Mo &P B0 162 04 04E/2018-19 dated Jeruery 1 XU ectended vio A% notifrotion ARVR018-X0/160
DORMNEF.BL I/ 1.0 (ME/FCI-20 dated Friveary 11, JH0 drtiaded fwthir vio R8I Watfietion RECIFO-F1AT DOR NG B2 CAT ] O DIE8020-21 deted Mgt & JOM0 estended further vio ARVRERIT-
22/27 DORSTREEC 12/2). 04 042/202 227 diated May 5, M3 - Micva, Small asd Mirdhum Fetirpssn (MEVE] spctor - Rbrcfuring of Advasin duding FF X001-20 and Fr X000-21.

Tha abeder ARclaiord SOs fad iiokedd ailietd wheve resahtin plos i Impiemenled voder AN progtos BAVIOIL-22701 DO STR BEC 10721 D4 L2872 001-2.2 chated Moy 5, 2021 -Resolitaon Fromenovk — 200
Rimalton of Conid 1§ relatind irrens o indnidoaly ond Smal funin s oen crd REAIN0 2100 OB Mo B2 B0/ T 08 D4 2000 2T doted S04 dugust 2000 - Ferofution Fromewovit for COVO- 1R related Strese
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19, Restructuing of Leans (Continued)

[R5 in lakhs)
Type of Restructuring Others
5r. Assel Classification
Ha. : Standard | Sub-standard | Doubiful Loss Total
Details
1|Restructured Accaunts as on Rpril 1, 2021 o, of borrowers 138 3 E16 - 3,054
Amzunt guistanding 947401 107074 10,544.80
Fresison therean 60352 47693 - - 108045
2|Fresh Restructuring during the year Na. of borrawers 15 17 32
LT Amaiunt outstanding 1,93803 17.00 - 2,015.03
Pravision thereon 108 104 13.28
3| Upgradations to restreciured standard category during the Fy* Ha. of borrowers 14 1,119 1143
Amount outstanding 626313 19757 592595
Prawision therean 5538 11564 205,04
Restructured standard Advances which cease ta attract highes
pravisiening and) or additional risk welght at the end of the FY and hence
need nat be shown as restructured standard advances at the bagnning of
4|the nest Fr Mo, of barrawers -
) At gutstand ng =
Preison thereon . . -
5| Drwn gradatians of restructured azcounts during the FY No, of borrowers (4] 34 -
Amdaunt autitanding {725 14) 15532 3694
= Provison thereon [E3.17) a9z221 a03 04
B Write-os of restroctured aceaunts during the FY Ha of borrowers . Fio) e 20
Amount outstanding |E0.E1) (30 81)
1501 Provasion therean . 20,03 - 20.02
7|Restructured Accounts as on March 31, 20312 Mo, of borrowers 35 2,728 1823
frnount oulitanding 10,1112 152473 11,642.06
Frowision therean A2B05 243 E6 1.271.71
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20. Disclosure as per Section It of RBI circular RBIf2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC,No.ZD/ZI;04.018/2022-23 dated April

19, 2022

A) Corporate governance

1) Compasition of the Board

sl. Name of Director Capacity (Le. DIN Number of No. of No.of
No. Directar sinca Executive/ Non- Board Meetings othet shares held |
Executive/ Director inand.
Chairman/ ships ‘convertible
Promoter Held | Attended | instruments
nominee/ ' heldinthe |
Independent) NBFC as at’
tarch 31,
. , 2023
1| Mr. Bhupinder | 13-12-2016 | Non-Executive | 07342318 | 6 5 11| 25,19,554
Singht Director ' : .
2 1 adr Vivek 112-06-2018 | Non-Executive 07835456 6 5 4 22,50,000.
Bansal® , : Director . Z .
3 | Mr. Debashish | 01-12-2020 '| Independent 03572010 6 6 Q-
Dutta Gupta® © | Director R
4 | Mr. Vivek 19-03-2018 | Non-Bxeciitive :023632_3'9.' 3 iy 3=
Anand P§* _ 1 Director : L .
5 i Ms, Rupa Vora | 27-10-2017 | Independent 018319164 6| 6 GRS
Director . ; ,
6 | Mr. Karnam 31-03-2023 | Indépendent 07400094 3 3 |-
Sekar® Director :

1 Pursuant o the composite scheme of arrangemendt; Mr, Bhupinder Singh has been redesignated as:Non-Executive Director-of the

Company with effect from July 28, 2022,
2 Pursuant 1o the composite scheme of arrangement, Mr. Vivek Bansal has been redesignated as Non-Executive: Director of the

Company with effect from July 28, 2022,

3 Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta, appointed as the independant Director, ceased to be anindependent Director with effect from: March
30, 2023 due to preoccupation with other assignments.

For Remuneration details, refer note No 31 - Related parly

1 Mr. Vivek Anand PS, appointed as the Nominea.of Oaks Asset Management Limited pursuant to the provisions ofthe Shiareholders
Agreemant entered batween the Company, promoter and investors ceased to be a Director with-effect from July 27, 2622 pursuan
to the composite scheme of arrangement, since certain part of the business of the Company has demergad into the IFSLand he has
been appointed in as director In the FSL. _

5 Mr. Karnarn Sekar who had csased to be an Independent Director of the Company with sffect from July 27, 2022 pursuant to the
cotmposite scheme of arrangement has been reappointed forhis second term:as the Independent Diractor of the Company with effect
from March 31, 2023. ) ) o
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Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.

Capacity Nature of change | _
si. Name of Director {i.e., Executive/ Non- _  |Effective date of change
No. Executive/ Chairman/ (Resignation,
Promoter nominee/ | 8ppointment)
Independent] ‘
1. |Mr Deepak Narang Independent Director Resignation. 11,06.2021
2, Mr. Girish Dinanath Nadkarni Non-Executive:Director Resignation 13.06.2021 .
3. Mr. Antonius Bruijninckx . { Non-Executive:Director Resignation 15,12,2021
4, | Mr. Karnam Sekar Independent Director | Appointment 17.12:2021
5. | Mr.Bhupinder Singh Non-Executive Director | Redésignation 26.07.2022
6. |:Mr Vivek Bansal Non-Exécutive Director | Redesignation . 26.07.2022 .
7. | Mr.Debashish-Dutta:Gupta | Independent Director | Resignation 30:03:2023
8 | Me Vivek Anand PS Independent Director Resigriation | 27.07.2022
9. [Mr. KarnamSekar Independent Director Resignation 27.07.2022
10. [ Mr.Karnam Sekar Independent Director } Appointment | 31,08.2023

Where an independent director resigns before expiry of her/ his term, the reasons for resignation as given by

her/him shall be disclosed.
1. Mr. Deepak Narang resigned as the Director due to his pre-occupation with other assignments: ‘&

engagement in other personal work.

2. On account of the effectiveness of the Composite Scheme of amalgamation and arrangement amongst
InCred Holdings Limited (formerly ‘KKR Capitai Markets India Limited'), Bee Finance Limited, InCred Financial
Services Limited (formerly 'KKR India Financial Services Limited'), InCred Prime Finance Limited {formerly
"nCred Financial Services Limited} {the Company"}, and their respective shareholders on July. 26, 2022,
which.was approved by the:National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated May 6, 2022, Mr, Karnam
Sekar who was appointed- as independent Director of the: Company, resigned:before completion of their

term.

3. Mr. Debashish Duttd Gupta who was appointed as an IndependentDirector ofithe Company, resignedbefore
completion of hls term on March 30, 2023, due to his pre-occupation with other assignments.

None of the directors of the Company are related to each other.
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Committees of the Board and their composition:

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (“CSR”)

The role of CSR Committee includes:the following:
To finalize and appraise to the Board a CSR policy for the Company.

To recommend CSR activities and expenditure on the same; and

To monitor |mplementatlon of the CSR policy of the Company from time to time,

Member of . Capacity Number offMeetings Nowof
sl. | Nameof : {l.e., Executive/ Non- e
No. | Director Committee Executivef Chairman/ : the Commlnee shares
since Promoter nominee/ Held Attended hald in
independent) |, “the NBEC
asat
Mé_r_ch 31,
_ 2023
1. Ms. RupaVora |June 12, 2018 independent Director 1 i -
2. Mr. Debashish July 26, 2022 independent Director - - -
Dutta Gupta®
3, | Mr. Karnam March'31,2023 | - Independent Director 1 1 .
Sekar’ 3 S
4. | Mr. vivekBansal | March'25,2019 |  Non-Executive Director T 1 22,50,000
AUDIT COMMITTEE {“AC”}

The role of the AC includes the following:

[

Oversight of the entity’s financial reporting process and the:disclosure of Its financlal information to
ensyre that the financial statement s correct, sufficient and credible;
Recommendation for:appointment, remuneration and terms of appolntment of auditors of the entity;
Approval.of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
Reviewing, with the management; the annual financial statements-and-auditor's-report thereon before

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. mattersreguired to beincluded in the director's responsibility statement to beincluded in the board’s
report-interms of clause {c) of sup-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companles Act, 2013,

i 'changes, if anv, in. acceunting poiicies and pr'actices and.reasons for the same;

d. mgmfzcan_t adjustments made in the financial statements _ar]smg out of audit findings;
- e. compliance with-legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. disclosure of anyrelated-party transagtions;
g. modified opinion{s} in the draft audit report;
Reviewing, with the management, the financial staternents:before submlss:ors to the board for approval;

8 Ceased to be a member of the Committea since March 30, 2023, No meeting was held during:the fenure for which Mr. Debashish
Duita Gupta was the member of the Committee.
7 Mir, Karnam Sekar who had ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company with' affect from July-27, 2022 purguant o the
composite scheme of arrangement has besn reappointed for his second term as the Independent Direstar of the Company with effect
from March 31, 2023, Accordingly, Mr. Karnam Sekar was reappginted as-a member of the Commitieg &n Margh 34, 2023

e e
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Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application: of funds raised through an-issue
(publicissue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc: }, the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utll]satmn of proceeds - of a public.or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the hoa rd to take up steps in this matter;

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit

L 4
process;

* Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of tHe Company with related parties;

+- Scrutiny of inter-corporate Joans and investments;

* Valuation of undertakings or assets of the entity, wherever.it is necessary;

*  Evaluation of internal financial controls:and risk management systems;

# Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

* Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

»  Discussion with internal auditors of any sigrificant findings and follow up there on;

*  Reviewing the findings-of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters wheré there is
suspected fraud orirregularity or a failure of internal controE systerns of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board:.

¢ Discussion with statutory auditors-before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of aud:t as
well as post-audit discussion to'ascertain any area of concern;;

¢ Tolookinto the reasons for substantial defaults In the payment tothe debenture holders, sharehofders
{in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

+ To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

*  Approval of appointment of. Chief Financial Ofﬂcer after assessing the quahﬂcatlons, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;.

»  Carrying out any other function as is mentioned In the termis of reference of the audit committee;

* Reviewing the utillzation of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in. the
subsidiary exceeding rupees.100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever Is lower
including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming iinto force of this
provision,;

» Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact-of schemes 1nvolvmg merger, demergar
amalgamation etc., on the entity and its shareholders;

* Anysuch other role/function as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors
or as may be required under the Companles Act; 2013 orany-other law for the time being in: force

) Capacity —Number of Vieetings .
sl. Name of Member of (L.e., Executive/ Non- of No.of
No. Director com.mlttee Executive/ Chairman/ the Qommlnee shares
since Promoter hominee/ Held Attended ' helc.i.in
independent) the NBFC
asat
: March 31,
. L 2023
1. | Ms.RupaVora |October 27, : Chairperson B 4 4 -
2017 :
2. | Mr. Debashish | December 01, Independent Director .. [ ¢
[ 2020 mé{ i
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Dutta Gupta® . .

3. | Mr. Karnam March 31, 2023 Independent Director | 3 3 -
Sekar® j

4, Mr, Bhupinder | July 26, 2022 Non-Executive Director | 1 1 25,19,554
Singhl® - .

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE {“NRC"}
The role of the NRC includes the following:

o identification of persons qualified to become director, recommendations to the Board for their
appointment /removal or filling of vacancies on the Board;

4 [dentiflcation of persons for-appointment as the Senior Managemeant: Personnel of the Company.

»  Note: As per Section 178(5); “senior management personnel” of a Company means members of the core
management team of the Co {excluding Board of directors) comprising all members of management.one
leveél below the éxecutive directors, including the functional heads.

= Administration and superintendence of the Employee Stock Option Schemes:of the Company.

« Formulation, supervision and implementation of the following policies:-

a. Appointment & Remuneration Policy for the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel’s;
b. Employees Remuneration Policy;
c. Policy for Annual Performance Evaluation.of the Directors.

e Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and récommend to the board of directors & policy relating te, the remuneration of the directors,
key managerial personnel and.other employees

For every appolntment of an independent director, the Nemination and Remuneration Committee shall
evaluate the balance -of skills, knowledge and experience on.the Board :and on the hasis of such
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The
person recommended to the Board for appolntment as an independent director shall have the
capabilities identified .in such. description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee may: '
a, usethe services of an external agencies, if required;
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity;.and
¢. considerthe time commitments of the candidates

s e formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board.of directors;

i o
&@ﬁﬁw > whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the
</ . report of performance evaluation of independent directors,
!.n}f ?i‘ﬁ%‘{fgﬁi L %1t recommend to the board, all remuneration, In whatever form, payable to senior management.
; Any such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the CommIttee by the Board of Directors

T G, neRlE & _ _
and/ or other committees of Directors of the Company or-as rmay be required under the Companies Act;

20130r any other law for the time being in force,

~ ) Capacity “Number ofMigetings |
Member of pacty of & No.of

8 Ceased to be a member of the Commiitee since March 30, 2023,

® Mr. Karnam Sekar who had ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company with effect from July 27,2022 pursuant te the
composite scheme of arrangement.has been reappointed for his sscond term as the Independent Director of the Company with effect
from March 31, 2023. Aceordingly, Mr, Karnam Sekar was not a member of the Committee for being eligible to attend the Meeting
held cn Decembes 18, 2022,

10.Mr, Bhupinder Singh was appointed as:a member of the Committee on-July 26, 2022,
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Sk Name of Committee (e, Executive/Non- | the Committee shares
No. Director since Executive/ Chatrman/ 1 heldin
' Promoter nominee/ Held | Attended the NBFC
Indepiendent) | asat
] . March 31,
1, Ms. RupaVora | October 27, ' Chalrperson 2 2 S e
2017 . . e
2. | Mr. Vivek Anand | Aprll 10,2018 |  Non-Executive Director T L I
Psll : .
3. | Mr. Debashish | December 01, Independent Director 2 2 -
Dutta Gupta® 2020 _ » _
4, | Mr.Kernam  [March31,2023 | independent Director - - -
Sekar? _ _ .
5. |Mr Bhupinder |June13,2021 Non-Executive Director- | 2 2 © 25,19,5534
Singh :

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ("RMC"})

The role.of the RMC includes the following: :
¢ Review and manage the Risk Management framework and processes of the Company in compliance with
the regulatory provisions and the best practices; :
» Toformulate a detailed risk management policy which shallinclude:

a, A framework for identification of internal and external.risks specifically faced by the Company, in
particutar including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly,. ESG.related. risks),
information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee. ‘

b. Measures for risk mitigation Including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.

¢ Business continuity plan,

¢ To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are In place to monitor and evaluate
risks associated with the business of the Company;
» To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, Including evaluating the

adequacy of risk management systems; o

s To periodicaliy review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering

the.changing Industry dynamlcs and evolving complexity; '

+ To keep the Board of Directors Informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;
The appointment, removal and tefms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to
review by the Risk:Management Commlitee, :
To review framework for monitoring and managing various types of risks including credit risk, market
risk, fraud risk and status of compliance with the Anti-Money Laundeting (AML) Standards;
To review the various risk related aspects of the loan and asset portfolio,.
To review and approve the various policies pertaining to the following:

3. Lending activities of the Company;

b. Know Your Customer {KYC)and AML;

11 Ceased to be a member of the Commiftes since July 27, 2022,

12 Ceased to be a member of the Cammittee since March 30, 2023,

13 Mr. Karnam Sekar who had ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company with effect from July 27, 2022 pursuant to the
composite scheme of arrangement hias bieen reappointed for his second term as the Independent Director of the Company with effect
from March 31, 2023, Accordingly, Mr. Karnam:Sekar was reappointed as a member of the Commities: on March 31, 2023. No.
meeting was held while Mr. Karnam Sekar was part of the Committes.
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¢ Recovery and Collections;

Any such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of DJrectors
and/ or other committees-of Directors of the Company or as may be required underthe Companies Act,

2013 or any other law for the time belng in force.

Capacity vibs
s, Name of Directar | T 1omeerof | 40 Executive/ Non- ,\I:::;::.c; ' No. of
No. & Member Committee Executive/ Chairman/ the C it shares
since Promoter nominee/ e zommi 'ee_ 1 heldIn
Independent) Held | Attended the NBFC
' - asat
. March’34,
_ : 2023
1, | Mr. Bhupinder Singh | March 28, Non-Exetutive Director 2 2 '25,19,554
_ _ 2017 , _ L
2 Mr. Vivek Bansal ‘March 28, Nan-Executive Director 2 2 - 22,50,000
2017 . :
3. | Ms, RupaVora® ‘October 13, Independent Director - - .
u 2021 |
4, Mr. Saurabh March 28, Member - -
Jhalaria® 2017
5. | M. Prithvi March 28, Member - - -
Chandrasekhar?® 2017 : o _ .
6. | Mr. Shallesh Kumar™ | July.27,2022 |  Chief Financial Officer 2 2 2,000

IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE (“175C").

Terms of Reference:

The rdle of ITSC includes the following:

. Approving Information Technology (“IT”) strategy and policy documents: and ensuring that the
management has put an effective strategic planning process in place;
Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT delivers:

7] Ex‘iim value to the business;
; o ﬂi? Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are acceptable;
;f,‘ { CHARTERED *;w Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to achieve strategic
7: { ACCOUNTARTS ;;é goals and provide high-level direction forsourcing and use of IT respurces;
gG Hsg0ew z “ Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining NBFC's.growth and becoming aware about
; exposure towards IT risks and controls;
To settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in regard to the above matters; and
+ Any such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors

4 Ceased to be a member-of the Committee since July 27, 2022,
1% Ceased {o be a member of the Comniittee sinte July 27, 2022,
18 Ceased to be a member of the Committee since July 27, 2022,
17 Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from July 27, 2022.
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T_T
Capacity . Number of No. of
L1 Name of Director & ?:noTr:;;:: éi«:éui:‘::;'g;:{ rrr:;::} ' Meetings of f::::?:;g
No. Member . i N the Committee ) .
since Promoter nominee/ | asat March
Independent} Held | Attended 31, 2023 .
1 | Mr. Vivek Bansal june 12,2018 | Non-Executive:Director 2 1| 22,550,000
2 | Mr. Karnam Sekar’8 | March 31, 2023 | Independent Director - 2 2 1=
3 | Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta®® | July 26,2022 | independent Director 1 1~
4 | Ms. Rupa Vora ~ 1lune 12,2018 | Independent Director 2 2 -
5 | Mr. Ashwin Sekar® April 29, 2022 | Member 1 1 1
6 | Mr. Selvan Mohan?* July 26,2022 | Member 1. 1~

ASSETS LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (“ALCO")

The role of the ALCO includes the following:

To review/ monitor the Asset Liabllity Management [ALM) profileand systems of the Company from time
to time;
To monitor and manage-the following by taking appropriate steps and recommaending sujtable measures
to-the Board:

Liquidity Risk;

iarket Risk;

Interest Rate Risk;

Funding and Capital Planning
To moniter and advise maturity profife and mix of the incremental Assets and-labilities of the Company;
To formulate Interest Rate view of the Company and advise future business strategy accordingly If
required. To advise on appropriate mix of hetween Fixed v/s Floating Interest Rate liabilities/ resources
and assets ete.;
To advise on Funding, Source & Mix of Liabilities, Product Pricing for theJoans etc;;
To advise on benchmark Floating Reference: Rate (RFRR) and:toamend / change the:same from time to
time, as required;
To review the ALM returns and take suitable remedial measures;
To adopt, amend, revise and modify ALM Policy of the Company in compliance with the.regulatory
requirements;
To assess the funding and capital planning for the.Company;
To advise roadmap for profit planning and growth projections of the Company.

4 Mr. Karnasm Sekar who had ceased o be-an Independent Director of the Company with effect from Juby 26, 2022 pursuant to the
composite scheme of arrangement has-been reappointed for his second term.as the Independent Director ofthe Company with éffect
from March 31, 2023, Accordingly, Mr. Karnam Sekar was reappeinled as.a meimber of the Committe-on March 34,2023,

% Ceased to be a member of the Committee since March 30, 2023,

20 Appointed as a member with effect from April 28, 2022 and ceased to be a member of the Committee since July 26, 2022,

2 Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from July 26, 2022. R
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' Capacity Number.of Meetings
. Naeof ! Me.mbker of e, Exe:utfv;lj Non- L -of & No. of
No. Director & Committee Exectitive/ Chairman/ the(‘;o.mmlttee I .shan‘es
Member . since Promoter nominee/ - Held Attended he.id "o
T Independent) the NBFC |
asat
March 31,
] 2023
. {Mr. Vivek Bansal {June 12,2018 Non-Executive Director 2 2 22,50,000
2. Mr. Bhupinder March 28, 2017 Non-Executive Director 2 2 25,19,554
 Singh : _
3. | Mr Saurabh ‘March.28, 2017 Member - - -
Jhalarfa®? ) _ ' . . .
4. |'Mr, shailesh July27,2022 Chief Financial Officer 2 | 2 1 2,000
Kumar? J
FINANCE COMMITTEE

The role of the Finance Comimittee ifictudes the following:

m  To-approve borrowing of monies {otherwise than by issue of debentures) by way:of avaahng--
financial-facilities from financial institution(s) / bank{s)-or other entities in-form of term
loan({s), guarantee(s} line of credit.or in any-other forms ("Facilities”), within the overall fimits
approved by the Board /: shareholders, in connection with our Company's bus!ness
requirement and taking necessary actions connected therewith;

«  To appoint security trustee(s} and/ar create charge/mortgage in favour of the lenders of the
company ' ‘

»  Toconsider opening of bank accounts with various banks, apply and avail corporate internet
banking, fax indemnity facility, email indemnity, online account statement viewing factlity
with respect to account maintained with various banks and to revise signatories for operating
various bank accounts of the company as and when necessary;

s Toreviewand approve an Assignment/ Securitization-transaction.or a transact[on relating to
the transfer.of Financlal Assets or Cash Flows;

* Toreviewand approve:arrangements and tle-lps. with the banks forvarious banking facilities
and/-or cash management services;

» To consider and approve availing of bank guarantees fram various hanks;

2 Top consider availing of corporate credit cards including. credit:card, facility in the name. of
employees / officlals of the company and the terms of such facilities;

= To approve:investment of surplus funds of the Company, within:the fimits approved by the
Board, in Mutual” Funds, Fixed Deposits, Government Securities, securities of any
Company/Body Corporate etc, and redemption, disinvestment thefeof;

= Toreview and recommend the investment Policy to the Board;

*» Toreview andapprove the Demand and Call Loan Policy and other related policies refating to
Firrance and Treasury (except the policies on Asset LlabrfftyManagement and Rateof Interést)
of the Company;

* To decide on matters relating to the finalization of the terms and condtti ons -of non-
convertible debentures (NCDs) to be issued on private placement basis and allotted from time
to time within the aggregate limit as approved by the Board of Directors, decide the opening
and closing Date for receiving application and date of allostment /deemed date of allotment,

22 (eased to be a member of the Commilttes since July 27, 2022.
2 Appointed as a- member of the Committee with effect from July 27, 2022,
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- apply with-stock exchanges for fisting:of the NCDs;

*  To appoint the debenture trustee, legal advisors, d enﬂsltories CUStOdIanS: registrar and
transfer agent and other intermediaries, in accordance with the provisions of the applicalile
Debt Regulations and the related formalities

*  To approve, authotize officials to sign and.execute Offer Document (s), Offer Letter (s},

-Information Memarandum(s) as per the prescribed format; if any, including any declaration,
confirmation, affirmation, mdemmty and undertakmg in respect of the' NCDs tothe potentlal
investors, listing ‘application(s), varlous agreements-inclading but riat: limited to Deed of
Hypothecation;: Debenture Trust Deed; Debenture Trustee: Agreement Listing: Agreement,j
undertakrngs, deeds, ded arations, affidavits, -certificates, ‘docurents,. etc and: :all-other
documents and to do all such acts, deeds and things,and to comply with all formalities as may
be-reéquired.in connection with and incidental to the offering of NCDs:on private placement
basis including the post issue formalities and with power to settieany question; difficulties or
doubts that may atise in regard to the issue or allotment of such NCDs as may be deemed fit.

*  To delegate authorities:from time: to.time to the: exectitives/ authortzed representatives ta
implement the decisions of the Cemmittee from time to time,

% Anysuch other ro!e/functions as may be speceﬁcally referred to the Commsttee by the'Board
of Directors

Capacity Noamber of Meetings i}
sl. Name of Member of {i.e., Executive/ Non- of No-of
No. Director Committee since Executive/ Chairman/ the Commutteg | shares

Promoter nominee/ Held: | -Attended | held:ln _
Indeperident) : .the NBFC
: © Casat
- March 31,. |
. 2023
1. | Mr, Vivek Bansal lune 12,2018 | = Non-Executive Director 11 11 L 22,50,000
2. |Mr.Bhupinder |-April 10,2018 Non-Executive Director 11 ] 11 + 25,19,554
Singh - ' '
1) General Body Meetings
sl. Type of Meeting {Annual/ Extra- |  DateandPlace |- Special resolutions passed
Ne. Ordinary) i '
1 Annual General Meeting September 30,2022 at | - Approval for adoption of restated
‘Registered office of the |+ Articles of Association -of the
Company - Company.

- Approval for reappointment of
Ms, Rupa Rajul Vora (DIN:
01831916) as an Independent

.. Director of the:Compary

2} Detofls of non-compfiance with requirements of Companiés Act, 2013

Not Applicoble




InCred Prime Finance Limited
{formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited)

Nofes to the Standalone Financial Statements

3) Detalls of penatties and strictures

None
B) Breach of Covenant- There are no breach of Covenants In the current year and previous year.

C) Divergence In Asset Classification and.Provisioning- Not Applicable

S —



InCred Prime Finance Limited

[farmerly known o inCred Fingnclal Services Limited]

KNotes to the Standalone Finandal Statements

21, Disclosure pursuant to RB| notification "RBA/2019-20/170 DOR (NEFC).CCPD.NO. 10922, 10.106/2019-20' dated March 13, 2020 - implemnentation

af Indizn Accaunting Standards

(A5 in lakhs)

Dilference
i Asset Loss Allowances
i bet Ind AS
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms for year | classification gmssclarr'ﬂru [Provisions) as | Net Carrylng F:::L“::‘ m;“::“;nn!
ended 31st March 2022 25 per Ind AS m:: :; Pt required under Amaunt r:qu nnr:lH anI:IF A
© 109 Ind AS 109
] OIS
it S 1 (3 {4) (5] =43)-{4) 1E| {7)=[a}-18)
Performing Assets
Stage 1 69.75 0.02 63.73 0.0z #
Handard Stage 2 x = Jil.= x =
Subtatal £9.75 007 69.73 002 3
Hon-Performing Assets (NPA)
Sulstaadard Stage 3 I62.28 186,98 75.30 0.14 186.84
Doubtful - up ta 1 year Stage 3 - 10857 [108.57)
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - 1827 (78.27]
Mare than 3 yaars Stage 3 = A .
Subtotal for doubtful - - 136.E4 {186.34]
Loss Stage 3 - - - . -
Subtatal for NRPA 16224 186,98 75.30 18658 10.040]
Other items such as guarantees, lnan Stage 1 0.00 060 P
commitmants, etc, which are in the scope of ind |518822 = e
A5 109 but not covered vnder current ncome
Aacognition, Asset Chassificaton and
Fravisioning [IAACR) norms Slaged 1
Subtotal " 3
Stage 1 60.75 0.02 §2.73 0.02 -
Tanal sl K - - - - .
Stage 3 161.28 186.98 75.30 186.98 [0.04]
Talal 332.03 186,99 145.03 167.00 [0.00]




InCred Prime Finance Limited

(formerly known os InCred Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

21. Disclosure pursuant 1o RBI notification 'RE1 2019-20,/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD. No.108/22,10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 - Implementation

of Indian Accounting Standards {Continued)

{Rs. in lakhs)

Difference

Assel Loss Allowances
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms for year | classlfication ::::::;?:ﬁ (Provisions) as | Net Carrying m::;::i::;“ h:':::::v::;::
ended 315t March 2021 as pu{ Ind AS Iid A% required under Amaunt IRACP nofmé and IRACP
4 o3 Ind AS 109 Tk
{1 ] {3) i) {5)=13)-141 (5] {7])=(4]-[6]
Performing Assels 1
Stage 1 3,49,541.03 2,461.45 347,07958 922.15 1,533.30
Standard Stage 2 21,971.46 1,229.09 10,74237 1,260.74 (31.65)
Sublotal 371,512,489 3,690.54 3,67,821.95 2,182,863 1,507.65
Mon-Performing Assets (NPA) 3
Substandard Stage 3 10,811.36 5.406.89 540447 529.56 4,577.33
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - 328.05 {328.058)
1to 3 years Stage 3 s
bore tham 3 years Stage 3 H ¥
Subtotal for doubiful 328.05 {328.05)
Lass Stage 3 5 = g - -
Subtotal for NPA 10,811.36 540689 540447 1,157.61 4,249,208
Stage 1 14,248.30 9,42 14,235,808 - 9.42
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 2 5 > . = :
commitments, etc, which are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 but not covered under cutrent Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and
Pravisiening (IRACP| norms Stage 3 . . - 7 -
Subtotal 14,248 .30 9.42 1423588 942
Stage 1 3,63,789,33 2,470.87 3,61,318.46 922,15 1,548.72
kT Stage 2 21,971.46 1,229.09 20,742.37 1,260,74 {31.65)
Stage 3 10,B11.36 5,406.89 540447 1,157.61 q,249.28
Total 3,96,572.14 9,106.85 3,87,465.29 3,340,50 5,766.35
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47 . Previous year figures are regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, ta correspend with the current year's classification f disclosure.
48, Previous year figures have been audited by another firm of chartered accountants.
49, There have been no significant events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements,

A per aur repert of even date

Fer Shinda Mayak and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Chartered Accountants inCred Frime Finance Limited
1CAl Firm Registration Moo 11980685 CIM: U74339H1991PLCIL0312
r\\‘( '3 "-)
aya \ Bhuplnder Singh Vivek Bansal
Farther Directay Direchor
Membership Ho: 104221 i 07342318 DIN; OFB154558

: h]
Place: Mumbal %ﬁ- L \y‘,\
Date: May 16, 2023 _ \-{\kh\;\'-‘b-— M

: Shaltesh Kumas Bhavyesh lain

chief Firanciol Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 30053

Place! Mumbai
Date; May 16, 2023
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